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COMPANY PROFILE

OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

Avon Mercantile Limited is one of the NBFCs, promoted by its first subscribers, Smart Bharat
Private Limited and Oasis Cineplex Private Limited. The Company since its incorporation is
engaged in the activities of investment, providing inter-corporate deposits, short-term loans
and advances to its group companies.

Avon Mercantile Limited is a Public Limited Company listed with BSE Limited and Calcutta
Stock Exchange Limited. The Company was established on January 21sf, 1985 and is
registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as Non-Banking
Financial Company.

The Company has always been an innovator par excellence that enabled it to lead the
way and stay ahead in the game. The Company does not accept public deposits.

THE VISION

The Company is incorporated with the main objects to carry on all or any of the business
of buyers, sellers, producers, manufactures, to act as financiers with the object of
financing by bridge loans, inter corporate deposits, to lend or deal with the money either
with or without interest or security and to arrange, negotiate loans.

Avon Mercantile Limited as on date do not have any Subsidiary Company (ies)

LOOKING AHEAD

As a company focused on providing loans, AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED is prone to the
concentration risk. Financial sector regulators in India have been expressing concern over
the concentration risk inherent in the mono-line business model. To assuage their
concerns, the company has always inifiated bold moves to become a multi-product
company.
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Noida, Uttar Pradesh-201301
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e o o
NOTICE of 35th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING :

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Registered Office:
S Global Knowledge Park, 19A & 19B,

Sector-125, Noida-201301 (U.P.)
CIN: L17118UP1985PLC026582
Phone : 0120-3355131, 3859000
Website: www.avonmercantile.co.in
Email id: avonsecretarial@gmail.com

NOTICE of the 35" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 35" Annual General Meeting of AVON MERCANTILE
LIMITED will be held on Sunday, 27t September, 2020 at 12:00 Noon through Video
Conference / Other Audio Visual Means, to transact the following business. The venue of

the meeting shall be deemed.

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2020 and
the Profit and Loss Account together with Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year

ended on that date along with the Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon.

2. To re-appoint Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap (DIN No. : 02359002) as a Director of the

Company who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for reappointment

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 160, 161 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act)
and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in

force) and applicable regulations, if any, of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) as amended, the appointment
of Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay (DIN No. : 07871728) who was appointed by the
Board as an Additional Director in the category of Non - Executive Independent
Director and holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and holds
office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom a notice
in writing under Section 160 of the Act has been received from a member of the
Company proposing his candidature for the office of Director and who meets the
criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation
16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, be and is hereby, approved as an Independent
Director of the Company for a period of five years w.e.f. 28t September, 2019 not

liable to retire by rotation.”

By Order of the Board

For Avon Mercantile Limited

Place: Noida Sd/-
Date: 15t July, 2020 (Pranjul Gupta)
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
M. No.: A35912

NOTES:

1.

2.

3.

An Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 is annexed.

As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic,
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its circular dated May 5, 2020 read with
circulars dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA
Circulars”) has permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (*AGM") through
VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and
MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM.

Since, the AGM is being conducted through VC/OAVM, there is no provision for
appointment of proxies. Accordingly, appointment of proxies by the members will not
be available.
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

. Corporate members intending to aftend the AGM through authorised representatives
are requested to send a scanned copy of duly certified copy of the board or
governing body resolution authorizing the representatives to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the
Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to caamitjain.btp@gmail.com
with a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 (3), of the Listing Regulations, in
respect of directors reappointing at the Annual General Meeting is appended hereto
and forms part of this Notice.

. a) The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain
closed from Monday, the September 21, 2020 to Sunday, the September 27, 2020
(both days inclusive).

b) The remote e-voting period commences on Thursday, September 24th, 2020 (9:00
am) and ends on Saturday, September 26™, 2020 (5:00 pm). No e-voting shall be
allowed beyond the said date and time. During this period members of the Company,
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date
of 20 September, 2020, may cast their vote by remote e-voting.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate immediately to the
Registrar of Share Transfer Agent of the Company, MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited,
F-65, 1st Floor, Ma Anandmayee Marg, Okhla |, Okhla Industrial Area, New Delhi-
110020, Phone No. 011-41406149 quoting registered Folio No. (a) details of their bank
account/change in bank account, if any, and (b) change in their address, if any, with
pin code number.

In case share are in de-mat form members are requested to update their bank detail
with their depository parficipant.

The shareholders having shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize the
shares at the earliest.

In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions, the
shareholders of the Company may nominate a person in whose name the shares held
by him/them shall vest in the event of his/their death. Shareholders desirous of availing
this facility may submit the requisite nomination form.
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. Any member requiring further information on the Accounts at the meeting is requested

to send the queries in writing to CFO, atleast one week before the meeting.

.Inrespect of the matters pertaining to Bank details, ECS mandates, nomination, power

of attorney, change in name/address etc., the members are requested to approach
the Company’'s Registrars and Share Transfer Agent, in respect of shares held in
physical form and the respective Depository Partficipants, in case of shares held in
electronic form. In all correspondence with the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent, members are requested to quote their folio numbers or DP ID and Client ID for
physical or electronic holdings respectively.

. The documents referred to in the proposed resolutions are available for inspection at

its Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day
except Saturdays, upto the date of meeting.

.SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every

participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are,
therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom
they are maintaining their demat account. Members holding shares in physical form
can submit their PAN to the Company/Registrar.

. Members who hold shares in multiple folios in identfical names or joint holding in the

same order of names are requested to send the share certificates to the Registrar, for
consolidation into a single folio.

.In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12,

2020, the Annual Report including audited financial statements for the financial year
2020 including notice of 35t AGM is being sent only through electronic mode to those
Members who have not registered their e-mail address so far are requested to register
their e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices,
Circulars, efc. from the Company electronically. In case you have not registered your
email id with depository or RTA you may registered your email id in following manner.

Physical | Send a signed request to Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company, MCS
Holding | Share Transfer Agent Limited at admin@mcsregistrars.com providing Folio number,
Name of the shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (Front and Back),
PAN( Self attested scanned copy of PAN Card), AADHAR ( Self aftested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card) for registering email address.

De-mat | Please contact your Depositary Participant (DP) and register your email address as
Holding | per the process advised by DP.
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16. Additional information, pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-
appointment is annexed to the notice.

17. Voting through electronic means: In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 44 of
the Listing Regulations and Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 Company is offering e-voting facility to its members. Detailed procedure is
given in the enclosed letter.

INSTRUCTION FOR REMOTE EVOTING, EVOTING AND JOINING OF AGM THROUGH VIDEO
CONFERENCING

(i)

(if)
(i)

The shareholders need to visit the e-voting website
http://www.evotingindia.com/.

Click on “Shareholders” module.
Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registered with the Company.

(iv)  Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(v) If you are holding shares in de-mat form and had logged on to
www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then
your existing password is to be used.

(vi)  If you are a first fime user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both de-mat shareholders as well as physical
shareholders)
Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository  Parficioant are requested to wuse the
sequence/PAN number which is mentioned in email.

Dividend Bank Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format)

Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order
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OR to login.

Date of Birth | If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company

(DOB) please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details
field as mentioned in instruction {iii).

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(i)

(i)

(xiv)

(xv)

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the
Company selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat
form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note
that this password is also to be used by the demat holders for voting on
resolutions of any other company for which they are eligible to vote, provided
that the company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly
recommended not to share your password with any ofther person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for
remote e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the
same, the option “YES/NQO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired.
The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and opfion NO implies
that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

After selecting the resolution on which you have decided to vote, click on
“SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote,
click on “OK"”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL" and accordingly
modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print”
option on the Voting page.
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(xvi)  If a demat account holder has forgotften the login password then Enter the User
ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the
details as prompted by the system.

(xvii)  Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app “m-Voting”. The
m-Voting app can be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the
instructions as prompted by the mobile app while Remote Voting on your
mobile.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHO WISH TO OBTAINLOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-
VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE BUT WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES IS
NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES:

1. For Physical shareholders- Kindly send an email with a scanned request letter duly
signed by 1st shareholder, scan copy of front and back of one share certificate,
copy of PAN card and Aadhar card to info@masserv.com

2. For De-mat shareholders - Kindly update your email id with your depository
participant and send copy of client master to info@masserv.com

INSTRUCTIONS FOR JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC:

(i) To join the meeting, the shareholders should log on to the e-voting website
http://www.evotingindia.com/ and login as explained above. After logging-in,
kindly click on 'live streaming' tab and you will be redirected to ‘cisco’ website.

In the “Name” field - Put your USERID as informed in e-email..
In the “last name” field - Enter your Name
In the “Email ID” field - Put your email ID

In the “Event password” field - Put the password as “cdsl@1234”

Click join now button.

Now screen will be displayed for downloading CISCO driver for VC. Please click on
run temporary file download. Downloading of driver will be start open driver and

click on run.

Event will start and you will be in the AGM through Video conferencing.
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You can join meeting through laptop, tablet, and desktop. In case you want to join
through mobile, you need to download the webex meet app from the respective
play store.

PRE-REQUISITE FOR JOINING OF MEETING THROUGH DESKTOP OR LAPTOP:

System requirement:

Windows 7, 8 or 10

13

Microphone, speaker

Internet speed minimum 700 kbps

Date and time of computer should be current date and time

DN N N N N

PRE-REQUISITE FOR JOINING OF MEETING THROUGH MOBILE:

v Please download webex application from play store

NOTE : IT IS ADVISABLE TO LOGIN BEFORE HAND AT E-VOTING SYSTEM AS EXPLAINED IN E-
VOTING INSTRUCTIONS ABOVE, TO BE FAMILIAR WITH THE PROCEDURE, SO THAT YOU DO
NOT FACE ANY TROUBLE WHILE LOGGING-IN DURING THE AGM.

PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING OF MEETING THROUGH VC (EXPLAINED USING
SCREENSHOTS):

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website http://www.evotingindia.com/
Below screen will be appearing:

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020
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ii. Press Shareholders/Members tab, after which the below screen will be appear.
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ii. Enter user id as mentioned in your invite email, or read point number (i) as given
above.
Since you are a registered user, below screen will be appear. Enter your existing CDSL
password in password field.
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iv. Incase you are 1st fime user of CDSL e-voting system, then below screen will be

appear.
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v. Enter your PAN and bank detail/DOB or follow instruction as given point number (vi)
above or mentioned in invite email; then below screen will be appear.
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vi. For e-voting, press EVSN number given in EVSN column; and for joining AGM through
video conferencing, click on “Click here” tab under the live streaming column.
E-voting screen will be shown as below, where you can cast your vote and press
submit button given at the bottom of the screen.
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Screen for login into Video Conferencing is shown below:

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

13



telecraftc

Ewenl Irdarmalicem Webhay Everd Dama

Dvwed prbac Hol sl ia®

Didw a4 brmc Moy, My 52- 05 1Rl e
il Toms purnan T i dely
[urea Lere pora

Drammiyon 1 b

Deriptinre

I e TME PVIRCE. YT PW TR T LD S

Fill the detdils as:

In the “Name” field

In the “last name” field

In the “Email ID” field

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

|
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- Enter your USERID as given in email
- Enter your Name

- Put your email ID

In the “Event password” field - Put the password as “cdsl@1234”

Click join now button.

You can join meeting through laptop, tablet, and desktop. In case you want to join
through mobile, you need to download the webex meet app from the respective

play store.

vii. Once you click on ‘Join now’ tab, the following screen will be appear :
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viii. Now, Kindly click on ‘Run a temporary application’, after which a Webex driver will
get downloaded. After downloading webex driver, run the application and you will
be directed to the AGM.
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

ANNEXURE - A

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN
RESPECT OF SPECIAL BUSINESS

ltem No. 3

Pursuant to provisions of Sections 149, 161 read with Schedule IV and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and applicable regulations of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) and on
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 28t September, 2019, appointed
Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay (DIN: 07871728) as an Additional Director in the
category of Non — Executive Independent Director of the Company.

In terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Act and Rules made
thereunder, the proposed resolution seeks the approval of shareholders for the
appointment of Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay as an Independent Director for a term
of 5 (five) consecutive years from 28t September, 2019 to 27t September, 2024, not liable
to retire by rotation.

The Company has received consent from Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay to act as a
Director and declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as
provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations
and also a declaration under Section 164 of the Act that he is not disqualified from being
appointed as a Director. In the opinion of the Board and on the basis of the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board believes that
he is a person of integrity and possesses the relevant expertise and experience and fulfills
the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules made thereunder and he is independent
of the management and his appointment as an Independent Director would be
beneficial to the Company and this will enable the Board to discharge its functions and
duties effectively.

A Copy of the letter of appointment of Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay as an
Independent Director setting out the terms and conditions of his appointment would be

available for inspection without any fee by the shareholders at the Registered Office of
the Company on all working days, except Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, during
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normal business hours. The Board recommends the resolution set forth in the Item No. 3 of
the Notice for approval by the shareholders.

No Director (other than Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay, himself) and Key
Managerial Personnel and their relatives, is in any way concerned or interested in
this resolution.
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Details of Director seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 32rd Annual

General Meeting

[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings]

Name of the Director

Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap
(DIN: 02359002)

Date of Birth/Age

30th August, 1975 / 45 Years

Nationality

Indian

Brief Resume of the Director and nature of his
Expertise in specific functional area

Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap is a member of Institute
of Company Secretaries of India and also of
Institute of Cost and Management Accountants
of India. He is having experience of more than
two decades in finance and legal.

Relationship with Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel

N/A

Board Membership of other companies

Smart Bharat Private Limited

Avon Mercantile Limited

Smart Dreams Private Limited

Modipur Solar Lamps Private Limited

Saket City Residences Private Limited

Mudaliar & Sons Hotels Private Limited

Smart Global Corporate Holding Private

Limited

8. Bougainvilea Multiplex & Entertainment
Center Private Limited

9. Modipur Realty Private Limited

10. MBM Limited

11. Spicebulls Investments Limited

12. Modipur Devices Private Limited

13. Smart Yoga Private Limited

14. Global Citizen Forum India

15. Saket Mediciti Private Limited

16. Saket City Rehabilitation Centre Private

Limited

Saket City Medical Office Building

Private Limited

o ok i =

17.

Membership of Committee of the Board

N/A

Number of shares held in the Company

100 Equity Shares
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Name of the Director

Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay

(DIN: 07871728)
Date of Birth/Age 10t August, 1989 / 31 Years
Nationality Indian
Brief Resume of the Director and nature of his | Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay is a

Expertise in specific functional area

Commerce and Law Graduate. He is having
experience of more than five years in finance
and legal.

Relationship with Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel

N/A

Board Membership of other companies

1. 1O System Limited
2. Wise Business Advisors LLP

Membership of Committee of the Board

IO System Limited - Audit Committee,
Nomination & Remuneration Committee,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Number of shares held in the Company

0 Equity Shares
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To

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

BOARD'S REPORT

The Members
AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Your Board of Directors has pleasure in presenting the Thirty Fifth Annual Report of your
Company for the Financial Year ended on 315t March, 2020. The Company has duly made
appropriate disclosures in this Board report with the objective of accountability and
transparency in the working of the Company and to make you aware about the working
and future perspective of the Company.

1.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF HIGHLIGHTS/ PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

The performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020 in
pursuant to requirement under Section 134(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)
read along with Rule 8(5)(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is tabulated below:

RESULTS OF OUR OPERATIONS

(in Rupees)
PARTICULARS March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Revenue from Operations NIL NIL
Interest Incomes 6,13,41,965 6,07,70,822
Other Incomes 3,38,562 3,657
Total Incomes 6,16,80,527 6,07,74,479
Finance Costs 5,22,47,031 4,66,52,896
Employee benefits expenses 1,15,39,316 1,08,62,368
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 80,278 34,040
Other Expenses 64,51,455 38,73,674
Total Expenses 7,03,18,080 6,14,22,978
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional ltems and fax (86,37,553) (6,48,499)
Exceptional ltems NIL NIL
Profit/Loss Before Tax (86,37,553) (6,48,499)
Tax Expenses (4,602) (1,81,093)
Profit/ Loss After Tax (86,42,155) (8.29,592)
Earnings per Equity Share- Basic (1.18) (0.11)
Earnings per Equity Share- Diluted (1.18) 0.11)

*The amount shown in bracket () are negative or decrease in value.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

During the year under review, there were no operations as such held in the Company,
due to which there is no revenue generated in the Company. The revenue generated
from interest & other sources is Rs. 6,16,80,527/- during the year, which was however
Rs. 6,07,74,479 during the preceding financial year. The loss suffered during the year
under review was Rs. 86,42,155 /- as compared to the loss of Rs.8,29,592_during the
previous Financial Year 2018-2019.

2. STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Company has been registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-Banking
Financial Institution (Non-Deposit taking). During the year, the Company has
categorized as a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial
Company'' as the main activity of the Company is of lending funds. The Company
intends to continue the same line of business in future as well.

3. CHANGE(S) IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There is no change in the nature in the business of the Company during the financial
year ended March 31, 2020.

4. COVID-19 IMPACT ON BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The World Health Organization declared a global pandemic of the Novel Coronavirus
disease (COVID-19) on February 11, 2020. In enforcing social distancing to contain the
spread of the disease, our offices and client offices all over the world have been
operating with minimal or no staff for extended periods of time. To effectively respond
to and manage our operations through this crisis, the Company triggered its
employee-safety first approach, the Company quickly instituted measures to trace all
employees and be assured of their well-being.

Our teams reacted with speed and efficiency, and quickly leveraged technology to
shift the workforce to an entirely new ‘work-from-home’ model. Proactive
preparations were done in our work locations during this fransition to ensure our
offices and fraining centers were safe. Travel related challenges faced by our
employees were swiftly handled, in line with the guidelines issued by the local
authorities. We have extended support fo the employees impacted by this pandemic.
The Company implemented a phased and safe return-to-work plan as and when
lockdown restrictions were relaxed.
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COVID-192 has created uniqgue challenges in the operation and oversight of all Indian
entities. These challenges are particularly acute when it comes to financial reporting
and disclosure. Financial reports necessarily contain forward looking statements.

Financial Year 2021 will experience the impact of COVID-19, in the areas of demand
pickup, credit culture, repayment capacity and wilingness to pay. While we
anticipate strong recoveries, there may be a slow pick-up in the real estate and
infrastructure financing segments. Your Company is further leveraging its technology
infrastructure to strengthen its data analytics and increase collections. Apart from
doing stringent project monitoring, your Company has also infroduced stringent credit
norms for fresh business disbursements and undertaken several measures for the
overall enhancement of its business efficiencies.

DIVIDEND

Based on Company's performance in the current year, the Board of Directors of the
Company does not recommend any dividend on Equity Shares of the Company.

TRANSFER OF RESERVES

During the Financial Year 2019-2020, the Company has not transferred any amount to
the General Reserve in terms of Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
as the company has incurred losses of Rs. 86,42,155 during the year 2018-19.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up equity share capital of the Company as on 31 March 2019 was Rs.
7.47,73,900. There has been no change in the Equity Share Capital of the Company
during the year. the Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 750 Lakhs divided
into 75,00,000/- (Seventy Five Lakhs Only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only)
each. The Company has no other type of securities except equity shares forming part
of Equity share capital.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELS

Mr. Ramesh Chandra Agarwal (DIN: 00037477), independent Director of the
Company, resigned with effect from 30th June, 2019 and Mr. Satish Kumar Gupta
(DIN: 00030841), independent Director of the Company, resigned with effect from
28th September 2019. Ms. Seema Salwan was appointed as an Additional Director,
Non-executive (Independent) of the Company with effect from 14th August, 2019
and her appointment was confirmed by the shareholders at the last (34th) Annual
General meeting of the Company. Also, Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay (DIN:
07871728) was appointed as an Additional Director, Non-executive (Independent) of
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the Company with effect from 28th September, 2019. In terms of Section 149 and
other applicable provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder, the approval of
shareholders is sought for the appointment of Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay, as
an Independent Director for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from
28th September, 2019, not liable to retire by rotation. The Company has received
consent from Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay to act as a Director and declaration
to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6)
of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and also a declaration
under Section 164 of the Act that he is not disqualified from being appointed as a
Director. In the opinion of the Board and on the basis of the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board believes that he is a person of
integrity and possesses the relevant expertise and experience and fulfills the
condifions specified in the Act and the Rules made thereunder and he is
independent of the management and his appointment as an Independent Director
would be beneficial to the Company and this will enable the Board to discharge its
functions and duties effectively.

Ms. Preeti Malhotra was appointed as Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 21st
July, 2019 and she later resigned from the Board w.e.f. 29 August, 2019. Mr.
Kamalapati Kashyap and Mr. Gurvinder Pal Singh were appointed Additional Director
of the Company w.e.f. 21st July, 2019 and their appointment as Directors of the
Company was confirmed by the shareholders at the 34th Annual General Meeting of
the Company. Ms. Rashi Adlakha and Mr. Rakesh Kumar Bhatnagar resigned from the
Board with effect from 21st July, 2019. At present the Board of Directors of the
Company comprise inter-alia of two independent Directors, viz., Ms. Seema Salwan
and Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay, both of whom have submitted a declaration
that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6)
of the Act and there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect
their status as independent director during the year.

Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap, Director, (DIN: 02359002) retires at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Gopal Singh
Negi continues to be the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company with effect
from 1st March, 2015. Mr. Pranjul Gupta acts as the Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Jagdutt Kumar Singh continues to be the Manager of the Company.
There has not been any other change in the Directorship or appointment / resignation
of Key Managerial Personnel.

The brief resume and details of Directors who are to be appointed / re-appointed are
furnished in the Nofice for the Annual General Meeting as ANNEXURE-B.
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i. Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors / Key Managerial Personnel.

As required under the provisions of Section 134(q) read with Rule 8(5) (iii) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the details of Directors or Key Managerial
Personnel who were appointed or have resigned during the year under review are as

follows:
Sr. Name of Director or Designation Date of Date of
No. Key Managerial Person Appointment Resignation
1. Mr. Ramesh Chandra Non-Executive 30/09/2014 30/06/2019
Agarwal Independent Director
2. Ms. Preeti Malhotra Non-Executive Non 21/07/2019 29/08/2019
Independent Director
3. Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap Non-Executive Non 21/07/2019 -
Independent Director
4. Mr. Gurvinder Pal Singh Non-Executive Non 21/07/2019 -
Independent Director
5, Mr. Rakesh Kumar Non-Executive Non 06/02/2012 21/07/2019
Bhatnagar Independent Director
6. Ms. Rashi Adlakha Non-Executive Non 08/02/2018 21/07/2019
Independent Director
7. Ms. Seema Salwan Non-Executive 14/08/2019 -
Independent Director
8. Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Non-Executive 28/09/2019 -
Upadhyay Independent Director
9. Mr. Satish Kumar Gupta Non-Executive 13/08/2014 28/09/2019
Independent Director

As on March 31, 2020, your Company's Board has a strength of 4 (Four) Directors. The
Composition of the Board is as below:

Category No. of Directors % of Total nos. of Directors
Non- Executive Director 4 100%
S. No. | Name of the Director Date of Appointment Status

1. Mr. Gurvinder Pal Singh Director (since 21st July, 2019) Non-Executive

Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap Director (since 21st July, 2019) Non-Executive

Ms. Seema Salwan Director (since 14th August, 2019) Non-Executive

bl I

Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar
Upadhyay

Director(Since 28 Non-Executive

September,2019)

Further, there was no change (appointment & cessation) observed in the office of the
Board of Director or KMP.
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STATEMENT OF DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SUB- SECTION
(6) OF SECTION 149

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations that they meet
the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, the
Independent Directors, fulfil the criteria of independence specified in Section 149(6)
of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Independent
Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s Code of
Business Conduct & Ethics laid down for the Board of Directors, Senior Management
Personnel and Other Employees

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the Financial Year 2019-2020, é (Six) Board Meetings were held. The Board
periodically evaluates the need for change in its composition and size. Details of
Board Meetings held and afttended by the directors during the financial year 2019-20
in the Report on Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report.

Meeting Number Date of the Meeting Percentage of Attendance
First Meeting 30th May, 2019 100%
Second Meeting 21st July, 2019 100%
Third Meeting 14th August, 2019, 100%
Fourth Meeting 28th September, 2019 100%
Fifth Meeting 14t November, 2019 100%
Sixth Meeting 14th February, 2020 100%
AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as on 31 March 2020, the Audit
Committee of Avon Mercantile Limited comprises of following 3 (Three) Members,
2(Two) members are Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Name Designation Category
Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Chairman Independent Non-Executive
Upadhyay Director
Ms. Seema Salwan Member Independent Non-Executive
Director
Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap Member Non-Executive Director

The recommendation made by the Audit Committee from time to fime was accepted
by the Board of Directors. The details of the terms of reference, meetings held during
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the year, attendance of directors at such meetings etc. are provided in the Report on
Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The details pertaining to composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(“NRC"”)and the Company’s policy on Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other Employees’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in
Section 178(3) and (4) of the Act have been disclosed in the Corporate Governance
Report, which forms part of this report. NRC while determining and / or
recommending the criteria for remuneration / remuneration for Directors, Senior
Management / KMPs and other employees ensure that:

a. the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality required fo run the
Company successfully;

b. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

c. remuneration to Directors, Senior Management / KMPs involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

During the year under review, no changes except those required under regulatory
provisions were carried out to the Policy.

. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The details pertaining to composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee in
accordance with Section 178(5) of the Act are included in the Corporate
Governance Report, which forms part of this report.

. SUBSDIARIES, JOINT-VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year under review, no Company has become or ceased to be its
Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.

. INTER-SE TRANSFER OF PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

During the year under review, there was no change in inter-se-transfer of shares
between promoter’s Groups.
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16. STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION HAS
BEEN MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE AND THAT OF IT COMMITTEES
AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations and the
Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India on January 5, 2017, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of ifs
own performance, performance of the Directors individually and the Committees of
the Board.

Manner of Evaluation:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board have laid down the
manner in which formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, its
Committees and individual directors has to be made. It includes circulation of
evaluation forms separately for evaluation of the Board and its Committees,
Independent Directors / Non-Executive Directors / Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer and Chairperson of the Company.

The process of the annual performance evaluation broadly comprises:

a) Board and Committee Evaluation:
e Evaluation of Board as a whole and the Committees is done by the individual
directors / members, followed by submission of collafion to NRC and feedback to
the Board.

b) Independent / Non-Executive Director Evaluation:
* Evaluation done by Board members excluding the Director being evaluated is
submitted to the Chairperson of the Company and individual feedback provided
to each Director.

c) Manager & Chief Executive Officer Evaluation:
e Evaluation as done by the individual directors is submitted to the Chairperson of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee who further provides feedback to
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subsequently to the Board.

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors held on 14th February, 2020
performance of Non-Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole
considering the views of Non-Executive Directors was done.

The performance of all the directors during the year was satisfactory and towards
the growth prospects.
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Personnel relations with all employees remained cordial and harmonious
throughout the year. Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere
appreciation for the devoted services of all employees of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNACE & COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

At Avon Mercantile Limited, it is our firm belief that the quintessence of Good
Corporate Governance lies in the phrase ‘Your Company’. It is ‘Your Company’
because it belongs to you —the stakeholders. The Chairman and Directors are ‘Your’
fiduciaries and ftrustees. Your Company has evolved and followed the corporate
governance guidelines and best practices sincerely to not just boost long-term
shareholder value, but to also respect minority rights. We consider it our inherent
responsibility to disclose timely and accurate information regarding our financials and
performance, as well as the leadership and governance of the Company. Your
Company is devoted to benchmarking itself with global standards for providing Good
Corporate Governance. The Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations have
strengthened the governance regime in the country. Your Company is in compliance
with the governance requirements provided under SEBI Listing Regulations. The Board
has also evolved and implemented a Code of Conduct based on the principles of
Good Corporate Governance and best management practices being followed
globally.

A detailed report on Corporate Governance is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE VII (a)’ and
forms part of this report.

Further, Avon Mercantile Limited received a certificate from M/s. K Rakesh & Co,
Company Secretaries in Practice (C.P. No. 14700) regarding compliance with
Corporate Governance norms as stipulated in Part C of Schedule V of the Listing

Regulations for the financial year ended 3]s’r March, 2020. The certificate confirming
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE —
Vil (b)’ and form integral part of this report.

DETAILS OF ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES/SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

During the year under review, no Company has become or ceased to be its
Associates, Joint Ventures or Subsidiary.

. AUDITTORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

At the 32nd Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2017, M/s Goel, Garg &
Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI FRN: 000397N), having there office at 18, Ground
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Floor, National Park, Lajpat Nagar-1V, New Delhi-110024, were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 years.

Further, vide noftification dated 7th May 2018; the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
done away with the requirement of seeking ratification of members for appointment
of auditors at every Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, no resolution is being
proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the 35t Annual
General Meeting.

In respect of the Opinion given by the Auditors in their report at clause no. 1, the
management states as under :

1. Total loan amount of Rs. 53.19 Crore was given as loan to Plus Pac Holding
Private Limited (“with Company”) on 11" March, 2016 on terms and conditions
which inter-alia included an interest @ 11.50% and repayment up to 14t January,
2021.

2. Till date an amount of Rs. 25.23 Crore has been repaid by the said company.

In my opinion of the management, the balance amount of Rs. 27.96 is recoverable
and not as NPA or a bad debt as of now.

Pursuant to provisions of the Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory
Auditors has not reported of any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee during the
year under review.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

As required under Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed
thereunder, the Company has appointfed M/s. K. Rakesh & Co., Company Secretaries
in Practice (C.P. No. 14700) to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year
2019-20. The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by M/s. K. Rakesh & Co., in the
prescribed form MR- 3 is aftached as ‘Annexure V' and forms part of this Report

As per the observations given by the Secretarial Auditors, the explanation to the same
has been given to them which form part of the Secretarial Audit Report. The Company
is taking all necessary steps to comply with the observations given by the secretarial
auditors.

. CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

A Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and
Schedule V para C of Clause (10) (i) of SEBI LODR, 2015 has been attached as 'ANNEXURE-
VI' obtained from M/s K. Rakesh & Co, Company Secretaries in Practice (C.P. No. 14700)
forms part of this Report.
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COST RECORDS

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the maintenance of Cost
Records has not been specified by the Central Government for the business activisties
carried out by the Company. Thus report under Clause 3 (vi) of the Order is not
applicable to your Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

As required under Schedule V(B) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report is presented in the separate section and is marked
as ANNEXURE - VIl and forms an integral part of this report.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards - 1 and Secretarial Standards - 2 issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government.

DISCLOSURE ON VIGIL MECHANISM (WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY)

Pursuant to Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014
read with Section 177(9) of the Act, the Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism
Framework. The objective of the framework is to establish a redressal forum, which
addresses all concerns raised on questionable practices and through which the
Directors and employees can raise actual or suspected violations directly to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company.

The role of Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company is to review the
grievance at the initial stage and in case the grievance is material, the same is
investigated through appropriate delegation. After investigation, the complaint with
investigation report is forwarded to Audit Committee. The Committee takes necessary
actions to maintain confidentiality within the organization on matters brought to its
attention.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

A key factor in determining a Company’s capacity to create sustainable value is the
risks that the Company is willing to take and its ability to manage them efficiently.
Many risks exist in a Company's Risk Management process and they emerge on a
regular basis. A Risk Management Policy is formed to frame, implement, and monitor
the risk management plan for the Company and ensuring its effectiveness. The sole
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purpose of this policy shall be to assist the Board in fulfilling its corporate governance
oversight responsibilities with regards to the identification, evaluation and mitigation of
operational, strategic and external environmental risks.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) and Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, extract of the Annual Return as on March 31, 2020 in Form MGT-9 is
enclosed as *"ANNEXURE-I" to this report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company occurred between the end of the Financial Year to which financial
statements relates and the date of this Report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND  MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS/COURTS/TRIBUNALS

The Company has not received any significant or material orders passed by any
Regulatory Authority, Court or Tribunal which shall impact the going concern status
and Company's operations in future.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM

According to Section 134(5) (e) of the Companies Act, 2013, the term Internal
Financial Control means the policies and procedure’s adopted by the Company for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detention of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the tfimely preparation of reliable financial information.

The Company has a well-placed, proper and adequate internal financial control
systems which ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected and that the
fransactions are authorized recorded and reported correctly. It provides for adequate
checks and balances and is meant to ensure that all transactions are authorized,
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reported correctly. The Internal Financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements are adequate commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The Board has appointed M/s RBAS & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as the
Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-2020. The Internal Audit
Report along with observations and recommendations contained therein was placed
before the Audit Committee in its meeting held on 15™ July, 2020 and was taken note
of.

. DISCLOSURE ON EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION/PURCHASE SCHEME

The Company has not provided any Employee Stock Option Scheme or Purchase
Scheme to the employees.

DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the Financial
Year 2019-20 in ferms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the
Company is not having any Unpaid or Unclaimed Deposits at the end of the Financial
Year.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company has been appended
in “ANNEXURE-IV” to this Report.

Further, in terms of Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, no employee:-

a. Employed throughout the financial year was in respect of remuneration of INR
60 Lacs or more, or

b. Employed for part of the year and was in receipt of INR 5 Lacs or more per
month, and

c. Was in receipt of remuneration in excess of that drawn by the manager and
holds by himself/herself or along with his/her spouse and dependent children,
not less than two percent of the equity shares of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN(S), GUARANTEE(S) OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the financial year ended March 31, 2020, the Company lays down the details
of the particulars of loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of
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the Act have been disclosed in the financial statements forms part of this Annual
Report.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES UNDER SECTION 188 (1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the financial year 2019-20, your Company has not entered into any transaction
with related parties as defined under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Companies (Specification of Definition Details) Rules, 2014, all of which were in
the ordinary course of business and on arm'’s length basis and in accordance with the
provisions of Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the applicable
Rules issued thereunder is attached in Form AOC-2 as “ANNEXURE-II" which forms part
of this report.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

Your Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee under the “The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibifion and Redressal) Act,
2013" in order to provide a profective environment at workplace for all its women
employees. The framework of the policy for reporting sexual harassment cases at
workplace ensures complete anonymity and confidentiality of information. Adequate
workshops and awareness programs against the sexual harassment are conducted
across the organization.

The Company has not received any Complaints on Sexual Harassment during the
year. The Internal Complaints Committees of the Company has also submitted its
Annual Report on Sexual Harassment to the Board declaring that no Complaints were
received during the year.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS OUTGO

Pursuant to provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 8(3)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the details of the activities in the nature of
Energy Conservation, Research and Developments, Technology Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo is attached as "ANNEXURE-_IlI” which forms
part of this report.

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the relevant rules, the
Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibilities’

initiatives, as the said provisions are not applicable on your Company.
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39. DIRECTOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors confirms that:

a.

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
mafterial departures;

they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of
financial year and of the loss of the company for that period;

. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities;

they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

. they have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of

all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

40. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board acknowledges with gratitude the co-operation and assistance provided to
the Company by its bankers, financial institutions, and government as well as Non-
Government agencies. The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation to the
confribution made by employees of the company during the year under review. Your
Directors gives their sincere gratitude to the customers, clients, vendors and other
business associates for their continued support for the Company’s growth. The Board
also takes this opportunity to express its deep gratitude for the continued co-operation
and support received from its valued shareholders.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Date : 2nd September, 2020
Place : New Delhi

(Kamalapati Kashyap) (Gurvinder Pal Singh)
Director Director
DIN: 02359002 DIN: 00520707
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ANNEXURES TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

| ANNEXURE-I

Annexure to DIRECTOR’S REP{HT i For the Financial Year

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i. CIN L17118UP1985PLC026582
ii. Registration Date 21.01.1985
iii. Name of the Company Avon Mercantile Limited
v Category/Sub-Category of the Company Limited by shares / Non-
: Company Government Company
v Address of the Registered office and S Global Knowledge Park, 19A & 198B,
) contact details Sector-125, Noida — 201301
vi. Whether listed company Yes
MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited F-65, 15T
Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-l, New
Delhi-1100 20
Ph:-011-41406149
vii Name, Address and Contact details of | Fax:- 011-4170 9881
) Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any Email:helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com
Website:www.mcsregistrars.com

. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated:-

Sr. Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
No. main products/ services Product/service the company
1 Financial Services 99711 99.45%

. PRINCIPALS OF LOANS, SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. Name And CIN/GLN Holding / % of shares | Applicable
No. Address of Subsidiary held Section
the company /Associate
NIL
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V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total

Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding:-

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of the %

Shareholders beginning of the year year Chan
ge
durin
g
the
yea
r

De-| Physical Total % of | D| Physical Total % of Total
mat Total |e- Shares
Shares | m
at

A. Promoter

1) Indian

a) Individual/ 0 70 70 010 70 70 0 0

HUF

b) Cenfral 0 0 0 010 0 0 0 0

Government

c) State Govt. 0 0 0 010 0 0 0 0

d) Bodies 0 19,60,000 | 19,60,000 [ 26.21 | 0| 19,60,000 | 19,60,000 26.21 0

Corp

e) Banks / Fl 0 0 0 010 0 0 0 0

f) Any Other 0 0 0 010 0 0 0 0

Subtotal(A)(1 0 19.60,070 [ 19,60,070 | 26.21 | 0| 19,60,070 | 19,60,070 26.21 0

)

2) Foreign

g) NRIs- 0 0 0 010 0 0 0 0

Individuals

h) Other- 0 0 0 010 0 0 0 0

Individuals

i) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0|0 0 0 0 0

i) Banks / Fl 0 0 0 010 0 0 0 0

k) Any 0 0 0 010 0 0 0 0

Other....

Subtotal(A) (2 0 0 0 0|0 0 0 0 0

):

Total 0 19,60,070 [ 19,60,070 | 26.21 | 0| 19,60,070 | 19,60,070 26.21 0

Promoters

Shareholding

(A)(1)+(A)(2)
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blBanks/F | 0] o/  of ojo}J o] o] 0] O

g) Insurance 0 0 0 0|0 0 0 0 0
Companie
S

i) Foreign 0 0 0 0|0 0 0 0 0
Venture
Capital
Funds

Sub-total 0 0 0 00 0 0 of o
(B)(1)

a) Bodies

Corp. 0 49,81,260 | 49,81,260 | 66.62 | 0| 49,81,260 | 49,81,260 66.62 0
(i) Indian 0 0 0 010 0 0 0 0
(i) Overseas
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holding 0 85,000 85,000 1.14 10 85,000 85,000 1.14 0
nominal
share capital
in excess of
Rs 1 lakh
c) Others(Spe 0 0 0 010 0 0 0 0
cify)
Sub-total 0| 5517320 | 55,17,320 | 73.79 (0| 55,17,320 | 55,17,320 73.79 0
(B)(2)
Total Public 0| 5517320 | 55,17,320 ( 73.79 | 0| 55,17,320 | 55,17,320 73.79 0
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)
C. Shares held 0 0 0 0|0 0 0 0 0
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total
(A+B+C) 0 74,77,390 | 74,77,390 100 ( 0| 74,77,390 | 74,77,390 100 0
ii) Shareholding of Promoters: -
Sr. Shareholder | Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end of the % Change
No. | ’'s Name beginning of the year year in share-
holding
No.of | % of %of No. of % of total | % of during  the
Shares | total Shares | Shares Shares of | Shares year
Shares Pledge the Pledged /
of the d/ compan | encumber
Compa | encum y ed to total
ny bered shares
to total
shares
I | Smart 14,70,750  19.67 0| 14,70,750 19.67 0 0
Bharat
Private
Limited
2. | Oasis 4,89,250 6.54 0| 489,250 6.54 0 0
Cineplex
Pvt. Ltd.
3 Bir Bahadur 10 0.00 0 10 0.00 0 0
Mishra
4 Haridas 10 0.00 0 10 0.00 0 0
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Nambiar
5 Deepak 10 0.00 0 10 0.00 0 0
Chakrawarti
6 Azad Singh 10 0.00 0 10 0.00 0 0
7 LN 10 0.00 0 10 0.00 0 0
Maheshwari
8 Sudhir 10 0.00 0 10 0.00 0 0
Kumar
9 Ashok 10 0.00 0 10 0.00 0 0
Kumar
Total 19,60,070 26.21 0 [ 19.60,070 26.21 0 0
iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Sr. no PARTICULARS Shareholding Cumulative
Shareholding
No. of % of total No. of % of
shares shares of shares total
the share
company s of
the
1 Smart Bharat Pvt. Lid.
14,70,750 19.67 14,70,750 | 19.67
At the beginning of the year
At the end of the year 14,70,750 19.67 14,70,750 | 19.67
2 Qasis Cineplex Pvt. Ltd.
4,89,250 6.54 4,89,250 6.54
At the beginning of the year
At the end of the year 4,89,250 6.54 4,89,250 6.54
3 Bir Bahadur Mishra
10 0.00 10 0.00
At the beginning of the year
At the end of the year 10 0.00 10 0.00
4 Haridas Nambiar
10 0.00 10 0.00
At the beginning of the year
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At the end of the year

At the beginning of the year

Azad Singh

At the end of the year

At the beginning of the year

Sudhir Kumar

At the end of the year

At the beginning of the year

iv)Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters
and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
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No | the Top 10 Date Reason of change No. of % of total | No. of % of
Shareholders shares shares of | shares total
the shares
company of the
compa
ny
01.04.2019 [ At the beginning of the 494500 6.61 | 494500 6.61
] LCC Infotech Limited
- Change during the Year - - - -
31.03.2020 [ At the End of the year 494500 6.61 | 494500 6.61
01.04.2019 | Afthe beginning of the 292500 3.91 | 292500 3.91
2 Blue Chip India Limited = Chqnge during the Year - - - -
31.03.2020 | Afthe End of the year 292500 3.91 | 292500 3.91
01.04.2019 [ At the beginning of the 403750 5.40 | 403750 5.40
3 | Benzer Agencies - Change during the Year - - - -
Limited 31.03.2020 [ At the End of the year 403750 5.40 | 403750 5.40
01.04.2019 [ Atthe beginning of the 213250 2.85 | 213250 2.85
4 | ATN International - Change during the Year - - - -
Limited 31.03.2020 | At the End of the year 213250 2.85 | 213250 2.85
01.04.2019 [ At the beginning of the 87500 1.17 87500 1.17
5 | Precision Papers - Change during the Year - - - -
Industries Limited 31.03.2020 | At the End of the year 87500 1.17 | 87500 1.17
01.04.2019 | Afthe beginning of the 80750 1.08 80750 1.08
6 | Silicon Valley Infotech - Change during the Year - - - -
Limited 31.03.2020 | At the End of the year 80750 1.08 | 80750 1.08
. 01.04.2019 [ At the beginning of the 70000 0.93 70000 0.93
Orbital Contractors & -
7 . : - Change during the Year - - - -
Financiers Pvt Ltd
31.03.2020 [ At the End of the year 70000 0.93 70000 0.93
01.04.2019 | Atthe beginning of the 60000 0.80 60000 0.80
8 | Atma Sales Pvt Ltd - Change during the Year = - - .
31.03.2020 [ At the End of the year 60000 0.80 60000 0.80
01.04.2019 | At the beginning of the 57500 0.77 57500 0.77
9 | Gainwell - Change during the Year - - - -
Commodities Pvt Ltd 31.03.2020 | At the End of the year 57500 0.77 57500 0.77
01.04.2019 | Af the beginning of the 55000 0.73 55000 0.73
10 | Apex Enterprises India - Change during the Year - - - -
Ltd 31.03.2020 | At the End of the year 55000 0.73 55000 0.73
v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sr. Shareholding Cumulative Shareholding
No
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For each of the Directors and KMP No. of % of total shares of the | No. of % of total
shares company shares shares of the
company
1. Mr. Ramesh Chandra Agarwal NIL NIL NIL NIL
(Independent Director)(Upto
30.06.2019)
2. Mr. Satish Kumar Gupta NIL NIL NIL NIL
(Independent Director) (Upto
28.09.2019)
3. Mr. Rakesh Kumar Bhatnagar (Director) NIL NIL NIL NIL
(upto 21.07.2019)
4. | Ms. Rashi Adlakha (Director) NIL NIL NIL NIL
(upto 21.07.2019)
5, Ms. Preeti Malhotra NIL NIL NIL NIL
(w.e.f. 21.07.2019) and (upto
29.08.2019)
6. Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap NIL NIL NIL NIL
(w.e.f.21.07.2019)
7. | Mr. Gurvinder Pal Singh NIL NIL NIL NIL
(w.e.f.21.07.2019)
8. Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay NIL NIL NIL NIL
(w.e.f. 28.09.2019)
9. | Ms. Seema Salwan NIL NIL NIL NIL
(w.e.f. 14.08.2019)
10. | Mr. Gopal Singh Negi (Chief Financial NIL NIL NIL NIL
Officer)
11. | Mr. Jagdutt Kumar Sharma (Manager) NIL NIL NIL NIL
12. | Mr. Pranjul Gupta (Company Secretary NIL NIL NIL NIL
V. INDEBTEDNESS
Particulars Secured Loans | Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans (in Rs.) Indebtedness
deposits (in (in Rs.) (in Rs.)
Rs.)
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year
i) Principal Amount - 516,372,647 - 516,372,647
ii) Interest due but not paid - 41,987,601 - 41,987,601
iii) Interest accrued but not due = = = =
Total (i+ii+iii) - 558,360,248 - 558,360,248
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
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- Addition - 610,523,790 - 610,523,790
- Reduction - 749,581,144 - 749,581,144
Net change - (139,057,354) - (139,057,354)

Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year

i) Principal Amount - 377,315,293 - 377,315,293
ii) Interest due but not paid - 43,557,738 - 43,557,738
iii) Interest accrued but not due = = = =
Total (i+ii+iii) - 420,873,031 - 420,873,031

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SI. No. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Total Amount (in Rs.)
Manager
1. Gross salary Mr. Jagdutt Kumar
(Manager)
(a)Salary as per provisions contained in 15,39.600
section17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 2,40,000
(c)Profitsin lieu of salary under section 17(3) of NIL
the Income- tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option NIL
3, Sweat Equity NIL
4, Commission
- as % of profit NIL
- others specify NIL
5. Others — Reimbursement 4,30,800
6. Total(A) 21,99,996

Ceiling as per the Act

Within the limit prescribed under Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013

B. Remuneration to other directors:
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SI. No. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
Amount
Mr. Ramesh Mr. Satish Ms. Mr.
Chandra Kumar Seema Siddheshwar
Agrawal Gupta Salwan Kumar
Upadhyay
1. Independent Directors
Fee for attending board / Rs. 7,500 Rs. 7,500 | Rs. 20,000 Rs. 15,000 | Rs. 50,000
committee meetings
Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total(1) Rs. 7,500 Rs. 7,500 | Rs. 20,000 Rs. 15,000 | Rs. 50,000
2. Other Non-Executive Directors
Fee for attending board / NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
committee meetings
‘Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
-Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total(2) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total(B)=(1+2) Rs. 7,500 Rs. 7,500 | Rs. 20,000 Rs. 15,000 | Rs. 50,000
Total Managerial Remuneration Rs. 7,500 Rs. 7,500 | Rs. 20,000 Rs. 15,000 | Rs. 50,000
Overall Ceiling as per the Act Within the limit prescribed under Section 197(4) read with Rule
4 of the Companies (Appoinfment and Remuneration of
Manaaerial Personnel) Rules. 2014

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD /MANAGER

/WTD
SI. no. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO Company CFO Total
None Mr. Pranjul Mr. Gopal Singh
Gupta Negi
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1. Gross salary
(@) Salary as per provisions NIL 540,000 1,201,200 1,741,200
contained in
section17(1)of the Income- tax
Act, 1961
(b)  Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) of the Income-tax NIt NIL 240,000 240,000
Act, 1961
(c)  Profits in lieu of salary NIt NIL NIL NIL
under section 17(3)of the
Income-Tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL
3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL
4, Commission
- as % of profit NIL NIL NIL NIL
- ofthers, specify...
5. Others- Reimbursement NIL NIL 297,800 297,800
Total NIL 540,000 1,739.000 2,279,000
VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal made,
companies Act | descriptio Punishment / [RD/NCLT/ If any (give
n Compoundingfees Court] details)
imposed
A. Company
Penalty NIL
Punishment NIL
Compounding NIL
B. Directors
Penalty NIL
Punishment NIL
Compounding NIL
C. Other Officers In Default
Penalty NIL
Punishment NIL
Compounding NIL
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e e L ANNEXURE-II 1

Eorm No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ length transactions under third proviso
thereto.

1. Details of confracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm'’s length basis.- None

SL. No. Particulars Details

1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of
relationship

2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

3 Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transaction .

4 Salient terms of the confracts or arrangements or Not Applicable
transaction including the value, if any

5 Justification for entering into such contracts or

arrangements or fransactions’

6 Date of approval by the Board

7 Amount paid as advances, if any

8 Date on which the special resolution was passed in
General meeting as required under first proviso to section
188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or fransactions at Arm’s length basis. - None

SL. No. Particulars Details
1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of
relationship
2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction
3 Duration of the Not Applicable
confracts/arrangements/transaction
4 Salient terms of the confracts or arrangements or

transaction including the value, if any

S Date of approval by the Board

6 Amount paid as advances, if any
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ANNEXURE-III

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE ACT READ WITH RULE 8(3) OF THE
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 AND FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2020:

FORM- “B”

(A) Conservation of Energy

Since the Company is not engaged in business activity, this clause is not
applicable.

S. No. Particulars Applicability
I the Steps ftaken or impact on conservation of Not Applicable
energy:

] the Steps taken by the company for utilizing Not Applicable
alternate sources of energy:

] the capital investment on energy conservation Not Applicable
equipment’s:

(B) Technology Absorption

S. No. Particulars Applicability
| the efforts made towards fechnology absorpfion: NIL
1l the benefits derived like product improvement, NIL

cost reduction, product development or import
substitution

] in case of imported technology (imported during NIL
the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year):

v the expenditure incurred on Research and NIL
Development:

(C)Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

NIL
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[ ANNEXURE-IV

Information required under Section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director fo the median remuneration of
the employees of the company for the financial year ending 31" March, 2020:

Not Applicable as none of the Directors of the Company has received any
remuneration from the Company except for sitting fees by the Independent

Directors
2. Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial
officer, Chief Executive officer, company secretary or manager, if any in the

financial year:

. The

Name of Key | Designatio | Remuneration for | Remuneration % increase in
Managerial n F/Y ended 315t [for F/Y ended | remuneration
Personnel March 2020 31%t March 2019

Mr.  Jagdutt | Manager 21,99,996 21,95,004 0.23 %
Mr. Pranjul Company 5,40,000 3,93,008 32.82%
Gupta Secretary

Mr. Gopal Chief 1,739,000 1,33,438 8.60 %
Singh Negi Financial

Percentage increase in median remuneration of employees in the financial year

Not Applicable since there is no employee except Key Managerial Personnel
employed during the financial year 2019-20.

. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company

During the financial year ending 315Jr March, 2020, there was 3 (three) employee
(i.,e. Key Managerial Personnel) on the role of the Company.

explanation on the relationship between increase in
remuneration and company performance

average

There was an increase of 1.49% in the total revenue earned by the Company
during the F.Y 2019-20 as compared to last F.Y. 2018-19. The percentage increase
in remuneration of the Manager during the F.Y. 2019-20 was 0.23%.
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There was an increase of 1.49% in the total revenue earned by the Company
during the F.Y 2019-20 as compared to last F.Y. 2018-19. The percentage increase
in remuneration of the Company Secretary during the F.Y. 2019-20 was 32.82%.

There was an increase of 1.49% in the total revenue earned by the Company
during the F.Y 2019-20 as compared to last F.Y. 2018-19. The percentage increase
in remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer during the F.Y. 2019-20 was 8.60%.

Comparison of the remuneration of the key managerial personnel against the
performance of the Company:

Aggregate remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel | 44,78,996

Revenue (in Rs.) 6,16,80,527
Remuneration of KMPs (as a % of revenue) 7.26

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (in Rs.) (8,637,553)
Remuneration of KMP (as a % of PBT) -

Variations in the market capitalization of the Company, price earnings ratio as at
the closing date of the current financial year and previous financial year:

Not Applicable as the Company’s shares are not frequently fraded.
Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other
than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison to

percentile increase in remuneration of managerial personnel:

Not Applicable as Company does not have any employee except Key Managerial
Personnel.

Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against
the performance of the Company:

Mr. Jagdutt Kumar Mr. Gopal Singh Mr. Pranjul Gupta
Sharma (Manager) Negi (CFO) (Company
Secretary)
Remuneration of Key 21,99.996 1,739.000 5,40,000
Manageri
Revenue (in Rs.) 6,16,80,527 6,16,80,527 6,16,80,527
Remuneration of KMPs 3.57% 2.82% 0.87%
(as a % of revenue)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (in (8,637,553) (8,637,553) (8,637,553)
Remuneration of KMP (as - -

Key parameters of variable component of remuneration availed by directors:

Not Applicable as no remuneration was paid to any of the Director (except for
sitting fees to Independent Directors).

The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the
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employees who are not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the
highest paid director during the year:

Not Applicable as no remuneration was paid to any of the Director (except for
sitting fees to Independent Directors).

. Affrmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the

Company:

It is hereby affrmed that remuneration was recommended by Nomination
and remuneration committee based on the Policy of Remuneration committee.
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ANNEXURE-V

K RAKFESH & CO.
C-532, Aman Vihar,

Kirari Suleman Nagar,

Near Rohini Sector-20,

New Delhi-110086

Phone: 9560522530, 8377954952
krakeshandcompany@gmail.com

Company Secretaries

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 315 MARCH, 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Avon Mercantile Limited,

CIN: L17118UP1985PLC026582

S Global Knowledge Park,

19A & 19B, Sector-125, Noida,
Gautam Buddha Nagar-201301(UP).

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Avon Mercantile
Limited (CIN: L17118UP1985PLC026582) (hereinafter called the “Company”) for the
financial Year 2019-2020. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 315t March, 2020 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance- mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
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| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by Avon Mercantile Limited ‘the Company’ for the financial year
ended on 315t March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

()

(if)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder as applicable;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
All the Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Circulars applicable to the Non-Banking
Financial Companies under The RBI Act, 1934;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable as there was no reportable
event during the financial year under review);

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) : -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable as there was no reportable
event during the financial year under review);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme

and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999/ Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employees Benefits) Regulations, 2014.
(Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the financial year
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(9)

(h)

(i)
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under review);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008. (Not applicable as there was no reportable event
during the financial year under review);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client. (Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the
financial year under review);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009. (Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the
financial year under review);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018. (Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the financial
year under review);

The Company has identified the following laws as especially applicable to the Company;

i. The Indian Contract Act, 1872;

i. The Indian Stamp Act, 1899;

ii. Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881;
iv. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards with regard to meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and
General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The Listing Agreements entered info by the Company with Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited and Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the Audit Period under review and as per the representation and clarification
provided by the management, | confirm that the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, and Listing Agreement

efc.

During the Audit Period, the Company has made the following changes in Key
managerial Personnel/ Board of Directors in the Company Management:
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Name PAN/DIN Changes Position Effective Date
Kamalapati Kashyap 02359002 | Appointment Director 21/07/2019
Gurvinder Pal Singh 05207077 | Appointment Director 21/07/2019
Preeti Malhotra 00189958 | Appointment Director 21/07/2019
Siddheshwar  Kumar | 07871728 | Appointment Director 28/09/2019
Upadhyay

Seema Salwan 06944301 | Appointment Director 14/08/2019
Ramesh Chandra | 00037477 Cessation Director 30/06/2019

| Agarwal

Rashi Adlakha 07742051 Cessation Director 21/07/2019
Rakesh Kumar | 02922258 Cessation Director 21/07/2019
bhatnagar

Preeti Malhotra 00189958 Cessation Director 29/08/2019
Satish Kumar Gupta 0003084 1 Cessation Director 28/09/2019

| further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and
Indirect Tax Laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same
has been subject to review by the statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.

| further report that:

>

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors including
the woman independent director as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
the Listing Agreement/SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Adequate notice of at least seven days was given to all Directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance and
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company

commensurate with the size and operatfions of the Company fo monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

95



AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

| further report that during audit period, the Company has not incurred any specific
event/ action that can have major bearing on the Company’'s complionce
responsibilities in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etfc..

My Secretarial Report of even date, for the financial year 2019-2020 is to be read along
with my letter which is annexed as Annexure A.

For K. Rakesh & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
(RAKESH KUMAR)
ACS: 32443 | COP: 14700

ICSI UDIN: A032443B000623165
21s August, 2020 | Noida
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K RAKESH & CO.
C-532, Aman Vihar,
. Kirari Suleman Nagar,
Comp any Secretaries Near Rohini Sector-20,
New Delhi-110086
Phone: 9560522530, 8377954952
krakeshandcompany@gmail.com

To,

The Members,

Avon Mercantile Limited,

CIN: L17118UP1985PLC026582

S Global Knowledge Park,

19A & 19B, Sector-125, Noida,
Gautam Buddha Nagar-201301(UP)

Management’s Responsibility

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintenance
Secretarial records, devise proper system to ensure compliance with the provision of
all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the system are adequate
and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. My responsibility is fo express an opinion on these secretarial records, standard and
procedure followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3. | believe that audit evidence and informatfion obfained from the Company’s
management is adequate and appropriate for me to provide a basis for my
opinion.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the management’s representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer
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5. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

6. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
books of accounts of the Company.

For K. Rakesh & Co.
Company Secretaries
Sd/-
(RAKESH KUMAR)
ACS: 32443 | COP: 14700
ICSI UDIN: A032443B000623165
21t August, 2020 | Noida

58



AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

E ANNEXURE-VI

K RAKESH & CO.
C-532, Aman Vihar,

Kirari Suleman Nagar,

Near Rohini Sector-20,

New Delhi-110086

Phone: 9560522530, 8377954952
krakeshandcompany@gmail.com

Company Secretaries

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members,

Avon Mercantile Lid.

S Global Knowledge Park,
19A & 19B, Sector - 125,
Gautam Budh Nagar, Noida,
UP- 201301

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received
from the Directors of Avon Mercantile Limited having CIN L17118UP1985PLC026582 and
having registered office at S Global Knowledge Park, 19A & 19B, Sector-125, Gautan Budh
Nagar, Noida, 201301 and (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before
me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications
(including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in)_as
considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, |
hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below
for the Financial Year ending on 315t March, 2020 have been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

S. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in
Company

1. Kamalapati Kashyap 02359002 21/07/2019

2. Gurvinder Pal Singh 05207077 21/07/2019

3. Seema Salwan 06944301 14/08/2019
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Siddheshwar Kumar 07871728 28/09/2019
Upadhyay

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board
is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For K. Rakesh & Co.
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-

(RAKESH KUMAR)
ACS: 32443 | COP: 14700

UDIN: A032443B000623088

27t August, 2020 | Noida
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e o o
ANNEXURE-VII(a) 1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements as stipulated in Schedule V
of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company submits the report on the matters
mentioned in the said Regulations on Corporate Governance and due compliance

report on specific areas wherever applicable for the Financial Year ended 3ISJr March,
2020.

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY

The Company continues to believe in conduct of its high standard of integrity, ethical
behavior, respect for laws, fair business and strong and effective audit conftrols in areas
of its operations. Your Company in this pursuit lays great emphasis on transparency,
accountability and compliance which guides the Company towards fulfiling the high
standards of Corporate Governance consistently.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of Board

As on 3]5Jr March, 2020, the Board consisted of Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap, Mr. Gurvinder
Pal Singh, Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay and Ms. Seema Salwan. The Board has a
balanced mixed of non-executive directors including Woman Director and

3rd

Independent Directors. 1/ of the Board Members are Independent Directors.

The Non-Executive Directors do not have any material pecuniary relationship or
transaction with the Company during the year 2019-2020.

All the Independent Directors possess the requisite qualifications and are experienced in
their own fields. Directors other than Independent Directors are liable to retire by rotation.

II.  Board Meetings, other Directorship and Attendance of Directors

A total of (6) six Board Meetings were held during the year i.e. on 30/05/2019, 21/07/2019,
14/08/2019, 28/09/2019, 14/11/2019 and 14/02/2020 respectively.

The gap between any two Meetings never exceeded 120 days.
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None of the Directors of the Company is a member of more than ten Committees or
a Chairman of more than 5 Committees across all the companies in which he / she
is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public

companies as at 3]s’r March, 2020 have been made by Directors.

The composition of the Board, attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the
year and the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships/Memberships held
by them in other public companies as on 315t March 2020 are given herein below.

i. Other directorships do not include alternate directorships, directorships of private
limited companies, Section 25 companies and of companies incorporated outside
India. Chairmanships/Memberships of Board committees include only Audit and
Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committees.

Name of the | Category No. of Whet No. of No. of
Director Board her Directorships Committee
meetings atten in Other positions held
during the ded Public in other
Financial last Companies public companies
Year 2019- AGM
held - -
Hel | Atten o Chair | Memb | Chair | Member
d ded 30/09 man er man
/2019
Mr. Rakesh Non-Exeutive 6 ] - - - - -
Kumar Non-
Bhatnagar Independent
(Resigned w.e.f.
21/07/2019)
Ramesh Non- 6 1 - - - - -
Chandra Executive
Agarwal Indepden
(Resignedw.e.f. | dent
30/06/2019)
Satish Kumar Non- 6 3 - = - = -
Gupta Executive
(Resigned w.e.f. | Independent
28/09/2019)
Rashi Adlakha Non 6 1 - - - - -
(Resigned w.e f Executive
21/07/2019) Non-
Independent
Preeti Malhotra | Non 6 ] - - - - -
(Resigned we.e.f. | Executive
29.08.2019) Non-

62




AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Independent
Seema Salwan | Non- 6 4 Yes
(Appointed Executive
w.e.f Independent
14/08/2019)
Siddheshwar Non- 6 3 -
Kumar Executive
Upadhyay Independent
(Appointed
w.e.f
28/09/2019)
Kamalapati Non- 6 5 Yes
Kashyap Executive
(Appointed Non-
w.ef. Independent
21/07/2019)
Gurvinder Pal [ Non- 6 5 Yes
Singh Executive
(Appointed Non-
w.e.f. Independent
21/07/2019)

Meeting of Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the Company had met during the year on 14Th

February, 2020 without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members of
Management toreview:

A) the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole,
B) the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the
views of Non-Executive Directors, and

C) the quality, quantfity and timeliness of flow of informatfion between the
Company Management and the Board.

Remuneration / Sitting fees paid to Director (s) during the year is given below:
l. Executive Directors

There is no executive director on the Board of Directors of the Company.
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1. Non-Executive Directors / Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Directors are not paid any remuneration including sitting fees for
aftending the meetings of the Board of Directors and committees thereof.

However the Independent Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the meetings of
the Board of Directors and committees thereof.

The Company does not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with ifs
Non-Executive Directors. The details of sitting fees paid and shares held by the Non-
Executive Directors / Independent Directors are as under:

Sr. No. Names of Director Sitting fees (in Rs.) No. of Shares held

1. Mr. Rakesh Kumar Bhatnagar 0 0
2. Mr. Ramesh Chandra Agarwal 7,500 0
3. Mr. Satish Kumar Gupta 7,500 0
4, Ms. Rashi Adlakha 0 0
5. Ms. Preeti Malhotra 0 0
6. Ms. Seema Salwan 20,000 0
7. Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay 15,000 0
8. Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap 0 0
9. Mr. Gurvinder Pal Singh 0 0

1. Board Procedure

The Directors are elected based on their qualifications and experience in varied fields as
well as company’s business needs. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
recommends the appointment of Directors to the Board. At the tfime of induction on the
Board of the Company, an invitation to join the Board of the Company is sent and a
directors’ handbook comprising a compendium of the role, powers and duties to be
performed by a Director is given to the new Director. Presentation is also made to the
new Director regarding the business and other details of the Company. During the year
a separate meeting of the independent directors was held on 14t February, 2020, to review,
inter-alia, the performance of non-independent directors and the board as a whole.

Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap, Director of the Company, retfires by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Also, w.e.f
281 September, 2019, Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay was appointed as Additional
Directors (Independent) who hold office upto the conclusion of this Annual General
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Meeting. The Company has received a notice from a member of the Company proposing
the candidature of Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay for appointment as a Director of the
Company. The Company seeks approval from shareholders for appointment of Mr.
Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of

5years, w.e.f. 28th September, 2019.

In Compliance with the SEBI Regulations on Prevention of Insider Trading, the
Company has framed a Code of Conduct to avoid any insider trading and it is
applicable to all the Directors, Promoters, Senior Managerial Personnel and other
connected persons of the Company who are expected to have access to the
unpublished price sensitive information relating to the Company. The Code lays
down guidelines, which advises them on procedure to be followed and disclosures
to be made, while dealing in the shares of the Company. The Company has revised
Internal Code of Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting
of Trading by Insiders in line with the amendments in SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015.

I Audit Committee

Audit Committee monitors & provides an effective supervision of the financial reporting
process of the Company with a view to ensure accurate and timely disclosures with the
highest level of fransparency, integrity and quality.

The functions and scope of the Audit Committee includes review of Company’s financial
reporting, internal controls, related party fransactions, utilization of IPO proceeds, if
any, insider frading, disclosure in financial statements, management discussion and
analysis, risk mitigation mechanism, appointment of statutory auditor and internal auditor
and all other aspects as specified by Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The Audit Committee is empowered, pursuant to its terms of reference, to:

a. Investigate any activity within its terms of reference and to seek any information it
requires from any employee;

b. Obtain legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance
of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise, when considered necessary.
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The Company's Audit Committee carries out all the functions as mentioned under SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has systems and procedures in place to ensure that the Audit Committee
mandatorily reviews:

a. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition;

b. Statement of significant related party fransactions (as defined by the Audit
Committee), submitted by management;

c. Internal audit report relating to internal control weaknesses;

d. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor and
statutory auditor;

e. The uses/applications of funds raised through public issues, rights issues, preferential
issues by major category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing, working capital
etc.), as part of the quarterly declaration of financial results, wherever applicable,.

The Audit Committee is also apprised on information with regard to related party
transactions by presenting the following:

a. A statement in summary form of transactions with related parties in the ordinary
course of business;

b. Details of material individual transactions with related parties which are not in the
normal course of business, if any;

c. Details of material individual fransactions with related parties.

Composition and Meetings of the Audit Committee:

During the period from 15t April, 2019 till 13" August, 2019, the composition of Audit
Committee was as follows:

Sr. Name Designation
1. Mr. Ramesh Chandra Agarwal Chairman
2. Mr. Satish Kumar Gupta Member
3. Mr. Rakesh Kumar Bhatnagar Member

On 14t August, 2019 the Board of Directors reconstituted the composition of Audit
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Committee in accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 till 27t September, 2019.

Sr. Name Designation
1. Ms. Seema Salwan Chairman
2. Mr. Satish Kumar Gupta Member
3 Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap Member

On 28" September, 2019 the Board of Directors reconstituted the composition of Audit
Committee in accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 fill 15 September, 2020.

Sr. Name Designation
1. Ms. Seema Salwan Chairman
2. Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay Member
3. Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap Member

On 2nd September, 2020 the Board of Directors reconstituted the composition of Audit
Committee in accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI

(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Sr. Name Designation
1. Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay Chairman
2. Ms. Seema Salwan Member
3. Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap Member

The Audit Committee met four times during the year i.e. on 30/05/2019, 14/08/2019,

14/11/2019 and 14/02/2020 respectively.

The details as to the attendance at the Meetings held are as follows:

Name of Director Chairman/Member

Category

Attendance at the
Meetings held during
the year from 1St April

2019 to 31St March

Mr. Ramesh Chandra Agarwal Chairman Non-Executive 1
(Resigned w.e.f. 30/06/2019) Independent
Director
Mr. Satish Kumar Gupta Member Non-Executive 2

(Resigned w.e.f. 28/09/2019)

Independent
Director
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Mr. Rakesh Kumar Bhatnagar Member Non-Executive 1
(Resigned w.e.f. 21/07/2019) Director

Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap Member Non-Executive 3
(Appointed w.e.f. 21st July, 2019) Director

Ms. Seema Salwan Chairman Non-Executive 2
(Appointed w.e.f. 14th August, Director

2019)

Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Member Non-Executive 2

Upadhyay Director
(Appointed w.e.f. 28th
September, 2019)

Ms. Satish Kumar Gupta, Chairman of Audit Committee, was present at the last
Annual General Meeting of the Company which was held on 30t September, 2019.

1. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for:

a. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the

remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees;

b. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;
c. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

d. Ildentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and
recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

e. All other aspects as specified under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
Appointment criteria

The criteria for the appointment of directors, KMPs and senior management are as follows:

1. The committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise
and experience of the person for appointment as director, KMP or senior
management level and recommend to the Board his/ her appointment.
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2. A person to be appointed as director, KMP or in senior management should
possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he/she is
considered for appointment fo. The committee has discretion to decide whether
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient /
satisfactory for the concerned position.

3. A person, to be appointed as director, should possess impeccable reputation for
integrity, deep expertise and insights in sectors / areas relevant to the Company,
ability to confribute to the Company's growth, and complementary skills in
relation to the other Board members.

4. A whole-time KMP of the Company shall not hold office in more than one
company except in ifs subsidiary company at the same time. However, a whole-
fime KMP can be appointed as a director in any company, with the permission of
the Board of the Company.

Remuneration Policy:

The Committee reviews and recommends the remuneration and performance linked
bonuses to Key Managerial Personnel and other employees of the Company and also
evaluates their performance based on the overall performance and financial results of
the Company and on the assessment of the personal confribution and achievements of
the individuals. The remuneration policy is in agreement with the existing industry
practice.

Increments to the existing remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees of the Company are recommended by the committee to the Board.

Evaluation Criteria of the Board by the Committee:

e The Board’s functioning was evaluated on various aspects, including degree of
fulfilment of key responsibilities, Board structure and composition, establishment and
delineation of responsibilities to various Committees, effectiveness of Board’s
processes, information and functioning.

The Directors were evaluated on aspects such as attendance and contribution at
Board/ Committee Meetings and guidance/support to the management outside Board/

Committee Meetings.

In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on key aspects of his role, including
setting-up the strategic agenda of the Board, encouraging active engagement by all
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Board members.

e The areas on which the Committees of the Board were assessed included degree of
fulflment of key responsibilities, adequacy of Committee composition and
effectiveness of meetings.

e In ferms of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the performance of the
Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the Director
being evaluated.

The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was

carried out by the Independent Directors who also reviewed the performance of the

Board as a whole.

Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

During the period from 1st April, 2019 fill 13" August, 2019, the composition of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee was as follows:

Sr. Name Designation
1. Mr. Satish Kumar Gupta Chairman
2. Mr. Ramesh Chandra Member
3 Mr. Rakesh Kumar Bhatnagar Member

On 14t August, 2019 the Board of Directors reconstituted the composition of Audit
Committee in accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 fill 27t September, 2019.

Sr. | Name Designation
1. Mr. Satish Kumar Gupta Chairman
2. Ms. Seema Salwan Member
3. Mr. Gurvinder Pal Singh Member

On 28t September, 2019 the Board of Directors reconstituted the composition of Audit
Committee in accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Sr. No. Name Designation
1. Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay Chairman
2. Ms. Seema Salwan Member
3. Mr. Gurvinder Pal Singh Member
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met twice during the year i.e. on 14t
August, 2019 and 28" September, 2019.

The details as to the attendance at the Meetings held are as follows:

Name of Director Chairman/ | Category Attendance at the
Member Meetings held during the

year from ]si April 2019 to
315" March 2020

Mr. Satish Kumar Gupta Chairman | Non-Executive 1
(Resigned w.e.f. Independent Director
28/09/2019)
Mr. Ramesh Chandra | Member Non-Executive 0
Agarwdal Independent Director
(Resigned w.e.f.
Mr. Rakesh Kumar Non-Executive Director
Member 0
Bhatnagar
(Resigned w.e.f.
Ms. Seema Salwan Non-Executive
. Member . 2
(Appointed w.e.f. Independent Director
14/08/2019)
Mr.  Siddheshwar Kumar . Non-Executive
Chairman . 1
Upadhyay Independent Director

(Appointed  w.e.f. 28t
Sentember 2019)
Mr. Gurvinder Pal Singh Member Non-Executive Director
(Appointed  w.e.f. 28t
September, 2019)

Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay, Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company which was
held on 30th September, 2019.

M. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is responsible for:

e Redressal of Shareholders' grievances in general and relating to non-receipt of
dividends, inferest, non-receipt of balance sheet, approval of the share fransfers,

tfransmissions , franspositions and issue of duplicate share certificates;

e specifically look into the redressal of grievances of shareholders of the Company; and
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e such other matters as may, from time to time, be required by any statutory,
confractual or other regulatory requirements to be attended by such Committee.

e All other aspects as specified under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

During the period from Tst April, 2019 fill 20 July, 2019, the composition of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was as follows:

Sr. | Name Designation
1. Ms. Rashi Adlakha Chairman
2. Mr. Satish Kumar Gupta Member
3. Mr. Ramesh Chandra Agarwal Member

On 21t July, 2019 the Board of Directors reconstituted the composition of Audit
Committee in accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 till 13" August, 2019.

Sr. | Name Designation
1. Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap Chairman
2. Ms. Satish Kumar Gupta Member

On 14th August, 2019 the Board of Directors reconstituted the composition of Audit
Committee in accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 fill 27t September, 2019.

Sr. | Name Designation
1. Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap Chairman
2. Ms. Seema Salwan Member
3. Mr. Satish Kumar Gupta Member

On 28t September, 2019 the Board of Directors reconstfifuted the composition of Audit
Committee in accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Sr. | Name Designation
1. Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap Chairman
2. Ms. Seema Salwan Member
3. Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay Member
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The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met once during the year i.e. on 14Th February

2020.

The details as to the attendance at the Meetings held are as follows:

Name of Director Chairman/ Category Attendance at the
Member Meetings held during the
year from 15'f April 2019
to 315" March 2020
Ms. Rashi Adlakha Chairman Non-Executive 0
(Resigned w.e.f. 21st July, 2019) Director
Mr. Satish Kumar Gupta Non-Executive
(Resigned w.e.f. 28t September, Member Independent 0
2019) Director
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Agarwal Non-Executive 0
(Resigned w.e.f. 30t June, 2019) Member Independent
Director
Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap Chairman Non-Executive 1
(Appointed w.e.f. 21st July, 2019) Director
Mr. Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay Member Non-Executive 1
(Appointed w.e.f. 28" September, Independent
2019) Director
Ms. Seema Salwan Member Non-Executive 1

(Appointed w.e.f. 14th August, 2019)

Independent
Director

The details of the investors’ compliant / grievance received by the Company during the
Financial Year 2018-19 are mentioned below:

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year

NIL
No. of complaints received during the year NIL
No. of complaints resolved during the year NIL
No. of complaints pending as af the end of the year NIL
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No complaint was received from the shareholders during the year ended 31$Jr March
2020.

Mr. Kamalapati Kashyap, Chairman of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, was

present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company which was held on SOTh
September, 2019.

I.  General Meeting
(a) Annual General Meeting:

The Location, date and fime of General Meeting held during the last three years are
given below:-

Period / Location Date Time
Year

2019 S Global Knowledge Park, 19A & 19B, So’rh September, 2019 10.00 A.M.
Sector-125, Noida, UP — 201301

2018 S Global Knowledge Park, 19A & 19B, 29’rh September, 2018 10.00 A.M.
Sector-125, Noida, UP — 201301

2017 S Global KnoY\/Iedge Park, 19A & 19B, 30’rh September, 2017 10.00 A.M.
Sector-125, Noida, UP - 201301

(b) Extraordinary General Meeting

No Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members was held during the year 2019-20.
Il. Postal Ballot: No Postal Ballot was conducted during the year 2019-20.

lll. Special Resolutions

The details of Special resolutions passed by the Shareholders during the last three Annual
General Meetings are as follows:

Date of AGM Whether any Special Particulars
Resolution was passed
30th September, 2019 No No Special resolution has been
29th September, 2018 No No Special resolution has been
3th September, 2017 No No Special resolution has been
passed
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Details of Voting Pattern: All resolutions were passed with requisite maijority.

Details of special resolution passed through postal ballot, the persons who conducted the
postal ballot exercise and the details of voting pattern:

During the year under review, no special resolution has been passed through the exercise
of postal ballot. None of the items to be transacted at the ensuing meeting is required to
be passed by postal ballot.

During the year under review, the Company has no subsidiary.

As required by Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the certification on the

Financial statements and the cash flow Statements for the year ended 315Jr March, 2020,
by the Manager (in absence of CEO) is enclosed as ANNEXURE - Vii(a)(i) af the end of
this Report.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for all Board Members of the Company.
All Board Members have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable
to them. A declaration to this effect is enclosed as ANNEXURE - VII(a)(ii) at the end of this
report.

a. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of
the Company of material nature, with its promoters, the directors or the
management, their subsidiaries or relatives that may have potential conflict with
the interest of the Company at large.

There are no fransactions with any of the related parties.
b. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on

the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any Statutory Authority, on any matter
related to capital markets, during the last three years.
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No penalties, strictures were imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or
any Statutory Authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last
three years.

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its powers), Rules 2014 and Regulation 22 of
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company has established a Vigil Mechanism
to report genuine concerns about actual or suspected frauds, unethical behavior
efc. and the same has been posted on the official website of the Company.

Further it is affimed that no personnel has been denied access fo the audit
committee.

Compliance of Mandatory Requirement

The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015 as presently applicable during the year under review. Details of
non-mandatory provisions to the extent complied with have been disclosed in this
report.

The Company publishes its quarterly un-audited (Provisional) financial results and
Audited financial results in English newspaper nhamed ‘Financial Express’ and Hindi
newspaper named ‘Jansatta’.

Registered Office : S Global Knowledge Park, 19A & 19B,
Sector-125, Noida, Uttar Pradesh — 201301
Annual General Meeting

th

Date X 27" September, 2020
Time : 12:00 Noon
Venue : Through Audio-Visual Means.

76



AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

(c) Financial Year ending : 31 st March every year
(d) Date of Book Closure : Monday, 21.09.2020 to Sunday 27.09.2020
(both days inclusive).

(e) Stock Exchanges at : (1) Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd
which Shares of the
Company are listed (2) The Calcutta Stock Exchange

Association Ltd
(f) Stock Market Data

There has been no trading in the shares of the Company during the Financial Year
under review.

The listing fee due for the year 2019-20 was duly paid to both the stock exchanges.

(g) Registrar and Transfer Agent:

MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited

F-65, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-I, New Delhi-1100 20

Ph:- 011-41406149

Fax:- 011-4170 9881
Email:helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com
Website:www.mcsregistrars.com

(h) Share Transfer System
The Company transfers the Shares in physical form and dispatch the same within 15
days from the date of their receipt, subject to the documents being valid and

complete in all respects. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee looks into the
issues relating to Investors Grievances.

(i) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31St March 2020

a. Promoter & promoter group - 26.21%
b. Financial Institutions, Banks, State and Central Government - NIL
C. Foreign Institutional Investors - NIL
d. Public & Others - 73.79%
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(j)) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The ISIN Number for the Company’'s Shares is INE471D01019. The members are
being provided the facility to get their shares dematerialized and further trading in
equity shares of the Company on the stock exchanges is permitted in demat and
physical form.

(k) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ : Not Applicable
Warrants or Convertible
Instruments, conversion
Date and likely impact

on Equity

() Address for Investor : Company Secretary & Compliance officer
Correspondence & for Avon Mercantfile Limited,
any query on Annual S Global Knowledge Park, 19A & 19B
Report Sector-125, Noida, Uttar Pradesh - 201301

The above report was placed before the Board at its Meeting held on 2nd September,
2020 and the same was approved.
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[ ANNEXURE - VIi(a)(i) ]

CERTIFICATION BY MANAGER AND CHIED FINANCIAL OFFICER OF AVON MERCANTILE
LIMITED AS ON 3157 MARCH, 2020 (IN TERMS OF REGULATION 17 OF SEBI (LISTING
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015)

We, Mr. Jagdutt Kumar Sharma, Manager and Mr. Gopal Singh Negi, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company heading the finance function and discharging that function, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, certify to the Board that:

A. We have reviewed Balance Sheet as at 3]SJr March 2020 and the Profit and Loss
Account and dall its Schedules and Notes to the Accounts as well as Cash Flow

Statement for the year ended on 315Jr March 2020 and that to the best of their
knowledge and belief:

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable
laws and regulations.

B. We are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by
the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the
Company‘s code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for
financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal
control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we
have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee

significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

2. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

3. instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the
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involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a
significant role in the listed entfity‘s internal control system over financial.

E. We further declare that all Board members have affiimed compliances with the
code of conduct for the year under review.

FOR AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
Jagdutt Kumar Sharma Gopal Singh Negi
(Manager) (Chief Financial Officer)

Place: Noida
Date: 2nd September, 2020
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[ ANNEXURE - Vii(a)(ii) ]

DECLARATION OF CODE OF CONDUCT

To,
The Members of
Avon Mercantile Limited

This is to inform that the Board has laid down a code of conduct for all Board Members
and Senior Management of the Company. The code of conduct has also been posted on

the website of the Company.

It is further confirmed that all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the

Company have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of the Company for

the year ended 315T March 2020.

By Order of the Board
For AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
(Kamalapati Kashyap) (Gurvinder Pal Singh)
Director Director
DIN No. : 02359002 DIN No. : 05207077

Place : Noida
Date : 2nd September, 2020
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e o o
l ANNEXURE-VII(B)

K RAKESH & CO.
C-532, Aman Vihar,

Kirari Suleman Nagar,

Near Rohini Sector-20,

New Delhi-110086

Phone: 9560522530, 8377954952
krakeshandcompany@gmail.com

Company Secretaries

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIOSN OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO THE MEMBERS OF AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

1) |, K. Rakesh & Co., Company Secretary in Practice, the Secretarial Auditor of
Avon Mercantile Limited (“the Company”), have examined the compliance
of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the financial
year ended on 31sf March, 2020, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and
clauses (b) to (i) of regulations 46(2) and paras C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
amendments from time to time (the “Listing regulations”).

MANAGEMENT'’S RESPONSIBILITY

2) The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility
of the Management. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control and procedure to ensure compliance with the
conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILTY

3) My Responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementations
thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions
of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion
on the financial statements of the company.

4) | have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the

Company for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance
with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.
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OPINOIN

5) Based on my examinatfion of the relevant records and according to the
information and explanations provided to me and the representations provided
by the Management, | cerfify that the company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and
clauses (b) to (i) of regulations 46(2) and paras C and D of Schedule V of the
Listing Regulations during the year ended 315t March, 2020.

6) | state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the company reporting of internal auditor directly to
the Audit Committee.

Place: Noida For K. Rakesh & Co.
Date: August 28, 2020 Company Secretary in Practice
Sd/-

(Rakesh Kumar)
ACS: 32443 |CoP: 14700
UDIN: A032443B000627147
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LI ] [ ANNEXURE-VIII

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANALYSIS REPORT

Industry Structure and Developments: -

The funds of Avon Mercantile Ltd are deployed in loans, investments and bank fixed
deposits.

Outlook/Projections for 2020-21:
The Company hopes to increase its income in near future.
Internal Control systems and their adequacy:

During the year under review, Company has an internal confrol system in place
and was periodically reviewed for effectiveness.

Financials:
Financial performance has been given separately in the Directors' Report.
Cautionary Statement

Statements in the 'Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the
Company's Objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may
be forward-looking statement within the meaning of applicable securities laws and
regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed in the
statement. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company's
operations include, among others, the performance of the other Companies in
which Company has made investments and the interest rates, changes in the
Government regulations, tax laws and other statutes and incidental factors.

By Order of the Board
For Avon Mercantile Limited
Place : Noida Sd/-
Date:2ndSeptember,2020
(Kamalapati Kashyap)
Director
DIN: 02359002
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GOEL, GARG & CO. 18, Ground Floor, National Park,

Chartered Accountants Lajpat Nagar-1V, New Delhi-110024
Phone No. : 011-46539501, 46539502
E-Mail : office@ggco.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of AVON MERCANTILE
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its loss and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. A total amount of X 53,19,96,748/- on account of loan receivables (including
interest outstanding thereon) is outstanding as at 31 March, 2020. Based on
explanatfions and information provided by management, % 27,96,81,754/-
(including  intferest  outstanding thereon) have been  outstanding
unsettled/unadjusted for significantly long period of tfime. The management,
based on internal assessments and evaluations, have represented that these
outstanding loan receivables are recoverable and that no accrual for diminution
in value of loan receivable is necessary as at 31 March, 2020. Further,
management has represented that, they are seriously undertaking all steps to
recover/adjust these amounts at the earliest. Pending the above, we are
currently unable to ascertain whether these long overdue outstanding loan
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receivables are fully recoverable. Accordingly, we are unable to ascertain the
impact, if any, on the statement of assets and liabilities that may arise in case
any of these remaining loan receivables are subsequently determined to be
doubftful of recovery.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulflled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAIl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr. No| Key Audit Matter Auditor’'s Response
1 NA NA

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not
include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
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inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, as applicable and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and fo issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance s
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs wil always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overide of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atftention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying fransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materidlity is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial a statement that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind AS financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of
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any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relatfionships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.

b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by
low have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, as applicable.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in ferms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Ind AS financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, no remuneration was paid by the Company to ifs directors during the
year.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact ifs

91



AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

financial position.

. The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

i, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

3. As required by Non- Banking Financial Companies Auditor’'s Report (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 (“Directions”), we give in “Annexure C" a separate report on the
matters specified in the said Directions.

For Goel Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number 000397N

Ashok Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 0844600
Place of Signature: Delhi
UDIN: 20084600AAAAAH5169
Date: 15t July 2020
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED of
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial conftrols with reference to Ind AS financial
statements of AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference
to Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
asrequired under The Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial confrols with
reference to Ind AS financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Conftrols Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements was
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established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to Ind AS
financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial conftrols with reference to Ind AS financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial conftrols system with
reference to Ind AS financial statements of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s intfernal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the fransactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
tfransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or fimely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the Ind AS financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind
AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Ind AS
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in condifions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial conftrols system with reference to Ind AS financial statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control with
reference to Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants ofIndia.

For Goel Garg & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number 000397N

Ashok Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 0844600
Place of Signature: Delhi
UDIN: 20084600AAAAAH5169
Date: 15t July 2020
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED of even date)

Vi.

In respect of the Company’s fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment):

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment).

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management during the year and no material discrepancies were identified

on such verification.

(¢) As per books of accounts verified by us and according to the information and
explanations given by the management the company does not have

immovable properties and as such the sub clause is not applicable.

The company is not carrying on any manufacturing or trading activity. Therefore

clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

As per the information and explanations given to us and cerfified by the
management and verified from the books of account, the company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained in pursuance of
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and
securities, as applicable. The company being a non banking financial company,

nothing contain in section 186, except sub section (1), shall apply.

The Company does not have any deposits as at March 31, 2020 and therefore, the

provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and as per information and explanations given to us by
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the management, the central government has not prescribed maintenance of cost

records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory

dues:

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Income Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory
dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. We are informed that
the provisions of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Sales Tax,
Value Added Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Cess are not applicable to

the company.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, Service Tax and Goods and Service Tax which have not been

deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

The Company does not have any loan from Bank, financial Institutions or Debenture

holders. Therefore clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Further based on our audit procedures and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion
that money raised by the company by way of term loan has been applied for the

purpose for which it was raised.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by its officers or

employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of

the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
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Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
where applicable, for all fransactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as

required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

Xiv. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence

reporting under clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section

192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

XVi. The company is registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

For Goel Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number 000397N

Ashok Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 0844600
Place of Signature: Delhi
UDIN: 20084600AAAAAH5169
Date: 15t July 2020
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

ANNEXURE ‘C’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED of even date)

a. The company is engaged in the business of Non-Banking Financial institution. The
company being a Non-Banking Finance Company has obtained a certfificate of
registration from the Reserve Bank of India to carry on such business. Further, the
company is entitled to continue to hold such certificate of registration in terms of its
asset & income pattern as on 315t March, 2020.

b. The board of Directors of the Company has passed a resolution for the non-
acceptance of any public deposits.

c. The company has not accepted any public deposits during the year ended 31st
March, 2020.

d. The company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income
recognition, accounting standards, assets classification and provisioning for bad and
doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms of Non- Banking Financial (Non- Deposit
Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions,2007
amended upto date. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, as per the updated circular DNBR (PD) CC.
No0.044/03.10.119/2015-16 dated 11th April 2016, the prudential norms except para 15
shall not apply to the Company as the Company is non-banking financial company
having asset size of less than Rs. 500 crores and further it does not accept/hold any
public funds.

For Goel Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number 000397N

Ashok Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 0844600
Place of Signature: Delhi
UDIN: 20084600AAAAAH5169
Date: 15t July 2020
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Ragd. Addrees: & GLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PARK 134 & 138, SECTOR-125; NOIDA
CRELITHBUP 128 5PLCD2E502
Balance Sheat as at March 31, 2020
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Non-Financial Assets

{a] Fropesty, plant and equisment 5 305370 26,85 437
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Sub Total Non-Financil asssts 15.269.45 13,850.61 788223
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LIAFILITIES AND EQLATY

Financial Llabiities

{3} Bormangs 7 37731528 SIEITIES  &35A41200
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Mon - Financial Liabitiss

(&) Prosions b PR . 1.1 €. I apd 3O 222363

Sub - Total NonFinanctal Liabitiss 382083 3,545.07 237382

EQUITY

{3} Equiy Share Capta 10 TAFT300 7477350 74 77300

(b} Cther Equity 11 4136274 SE0ES] 8143449

Sub - Total Equity 11673664 1.25.978.80 12620839
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Summary o signfican accounting polices 1
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A5 DEr O Fiached report of even dale

For Gost zarg & Co. For and on behall of the Boand of Directors

Charterad Accountanie
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EVON MERCANTILE LIMITED
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CINCL1T118UP188EPLCO2EERD
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AVOM MERCANTILE LIMITED

Rega. Addresa: 5 GLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PARK 134 & 136, SECTOR-125 NCGIDA
CIHLIT I EUP1385PLCO2ZE G2

Cash Flow Statement for the year snded March 31, 2020

EE a7
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For Goel Garg & Co.

Chartaned Accountants

FRM: MHESTH

[Ashok KUmar Agarwal) [Kamalapati Kashyap)
Fartner Chrector

M. NO.OE4S00 DM 023509002

Pigce : Molda [Pranjul Gupta)

DCate - 15.07.2020

Company Seoretary

M. o A3SE12

For and on behalf of the Soard of Directors

[Burvinder Pal Singhy
CHrecior
EAN: D5 207877

{Gopal Singh Magl)
CFO
PARLAASEMAIERA
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AVOH MERCANTILE LIMITED
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED
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Hotss b Financlal Statements for the parod ended March 21, 2020
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Regd Addrecs: & SLOEAL KHOWLEDOE PARK 584 & 188 SECTOR-1ZE, NOIDA

ANCHN MERCANTILE LIMITED

CR-LIT T U 28 EP LSRR

Satsrment of Changec in Equity for the year encesd 31 March, 2020

A. Equity 3hars Tapal Hen b {anount im ¥ 005
Equity charas of Ro. 0 saoh loousd,
ubeoribed and fully pald
At stApnl 31E e ao
AL3T Mfanch 2512 i R 7477150
ALY Manch 2000 T4 TT.200 47T 50
EL ritver Egruity
TAmount in § 000
FaGArven: ang GLupIuG
ReGarvas Furd
WIS 4510 of The Fatalined Epeoial Amaigamation Tobxd
' RE1 Aot sarnings | . Recarrs Frceni

[E ol TGt Aprd o ls TIrE T T UBE T T 3] [iE R BT A |
Proftioss for the period #820.59) T {829.55%
Todal o omprehenGive Noome T TETE.BE] z T818.58)
(& af 31 March 208 TITE T | ! EILTH iR B AN |
Frofiieas for e perod = 18,542.15) = 2,641 15)
Otner comorshencive Inoome

Re-measurement gansiflosser) on detned

benett plars B - - - -

FNTOC gty st = = = L
ToAD! O OMprEn BnGIvE Maome - IR TE]| = = aaT oy
Ac ol 37 March 2020 147881 [38,208.81) ] LR LR

Zummmary -of significant asooenting poficlec 1

The Fcoompaniing mofes ane-an eoegral pan of the slandaohe francs shisments.

A5 perouratached report of Even dake
Far Gost Garg & Co

Charisred Aosocuntartc

FRH: 30939TH

{Askok Fumar Agarsall
Fariner
LU = k]

Flace ; Mofda
Diate @ 507 2020

For &nd on ekl of the Board of Dirsobon

JKamalapail Kachyag]
Sir=clor
ful T s e

fPranjul Gupkz)

Comipay Secrefany
I Bpos AJS9M2

(ourvingss Pal Tingh}
Dinecior.
DN 05207077

[Dapad Zingh Meglh
CRO
PARMAASPMAZE DA,
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

AVOM MERCANTILE LIMITED

Regd. Acdrece: 3 DLDBAL MNDOWLEDSE PARF 254 & 108, SECTOR-1ZE NOIDA

CHLIT 118U EBESPLCD 253D

Hotet o Finanobal Setements for the peniod endad Maroh 31, 2000

Mote 3: Loang
The carmying wallse and falr walus of Loans by categories as of $1zf Manch 2020 ars as Tollows. [Emount In ¥ 000}
A Falr Waile
Deslgnaied at
Parficulars "'”f;?“ through | trough mirvaue | Sub-fobs Tiotal
OCI | profitorioss | thaough pmoe or
Jcess

Loans
T {1} Temn Loans ” 32074200 ’ T = 2575200

1} Chers i : 3 = REN]
Total (5] Grosss 4,439,651 42 = E - 4,49 559,43
[CEEs: ImMpannent Loss Airnance - - - - -
Total (4) Hat 43585142 3 - - 4 I3 E50.40
TET T Ureecred o : = = TE05 .40
Total (B) Groaes 4,45 551 42 = - - 4 E5EE1 42
LE5%. IMparnenl Lres AlOwWance - - - E -
Total (E) Hat 4,439 651,43 - 5 E 8,49 551 43
TG 1} Loans In ndia = =

11T Pubiic Secior z : 3 = =

) Coers 3,49 55142 - - - T IGE50.42
Total [C) Groees 435,851 .42 - - - 4,25,551.47
[TEGE IMTan e LO6E SR 1o - - - = =
Total (C) 1) Het 4,43 651,42 : = - 4,23551 42
TSR = Tl - - - - =
Tatal [C) ] st : - - : -
Total (C) (1) and [} (1] 33585142 - - - 35965142

* Fafer Mote Mo, 23

The carrying walss and falr vaie of Lisns by

catagories as of 318t March 23 are as Tollows.

Aot In ¥ 00y

AL Falr Valus
Parficulars 'ﬂ‘":::;tm through |  through fair vaue Sb-iotal Total
QC | profit of 1085 | thiugh profit of

Linans
(5 1) verm Loans o O - 3 = ER R

o T - E E T
Total (A) Grosss 5,97, 102,08 - - = 5,97, 1008
LEGS: Impaimnent Loss Alowance - - - - -
Tital {£] Rat 5.57.102.08 - - - 5.57.102.08
LB i} Uinseciueed 597,102,085 - - - 5,97, 10208
Total (B Grosss 5,57, 102.08 - z = 58710208
| L26E IMpanmedl Loms Aloaars - - - - B
Total (B) Hat 5.57.102.68 = = - 5,97, 102.08
1€ 1) Loans inindla - -

T PG Seci - - E B =

LSS o, 07, T2 DS - - - o da, UL
Tiotal sl.'_:l Groass 5,57, 102.08 - - - 5.87.102.08
LEGE, IMEARTEL L0as SN0 - - - E -
Taotal (] (1} Nat 5,97, 102,68 - - - 5,97, 10208
JCHE Loans oulsige dndla - - - - -
Less. Impaimment Loss Adowance - - - - -
Tokal [C) ) Fest : - - - -
Tatal () {1} and (<] (] 5.97,102.68 - - - 5,97, 10208
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

AVON MERCANTILE LBMETED
Regd. Acdrecs: & OLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PARK 184 & 1RE, EECTOR-12E, HOIDA
CIN L7 HaUF18ESsPLCD2A58D.

Koter o Fieancial Siatensenbes for the period andesd Maroh 31, 2033

Miode 20 Loans
The camying walie and falr value of Loans by categories as of 1al Aprl 215 are as foflows. { st In F 000}
7 Falr value
Particulars ﬁw mrougr | though | taewaie | Sundoea|  Totm
CCl | profitor Hoss | Bhmaigh pritor
Loans
A 1] TErT Loars ] : - : - 590055950
iy omers - - - - - =
Total (5] Groess 5.90,039.50 - - - - 5, 80,053, 50
Tatal [4) Net 50 50 50 - - - - 5.0, 539,50
[TET 11 Jnsecred = s = - - - LR R
Tolai [B] Groass 5,90,059.50 - - - - 5,30, 059,50
LEREL IﬂF-E:FI‘-Eﬂ! Loes ARAEn0e 3 ¥ - ¥ - -
Total [E) Nat 590,059, 50 - . - - 5.90,059.50
ICT ) Loans in Indlz - -
[ i Seche - - - - - -
il Chners 500 0. 50 . - - - E.90, 135,50
Total [C) Groass 550 I3, 5 - - - : 5,30, 053 50
[TEaE, IMDE e, Loss SOUaaGE - - - - - -
T T N — ' e
oy Doane. e Nyila - - - - - -
R AR s - - E - = -
Tatal [z i) et - - - - - -
Total () (1) and |C] ) 5, 30,05, 50 - - - - 5.0, 050
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Mote 3: Investments

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Ragd. Address. 5 GLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PARK 134 & 138, SECTOR-125, NODA
CHRELITHIBUP1385PLOO2 6582

Miotes to Financlal Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020

The carrying value and fair value of Investments by categories as of 31 st March 2020 are as follows:

fAmeounit in 3 000}

At Fair Value
- Designated at

Particulars Ammsltﬂd through through Fai?'ualu{- Sub-total Total

o ol | profitorloss | through profa

or loes

Equity insbruments 2780800 - - - - 27 B02.0D
[Thers - - - - -
Total {A) Grosss 2780800 - - - 27,808.00
1) irrestent olutsige ndid - - - - - -
{¥) Investreent in India 27.808.00 - - - - 2780200
Total (B) Grosss 27.208.00 - - - 27 80800
Less: Allcwance for Impairment 27.808.00 - - - - 27 B08.00
Total {T) (1) Met - - - - -

The carrying walue and fair value of Inwesiments by categories as of 31st March 20119 are as follows. {Amount in

F 000}y
At Fair Value
’ Diezignated at
Particulars M‘;TEI:Ed EnroLgh through r'aiE'uaIue Sub-total Tuotal
Qi profitior loss | through profit
or loss
Equity Instraments 27.808.00 - - - - 27 B08.60
Cthers - - - - - -
Total (A) Grosss 27.508.00 - - - 27 808 00
{1} Investment cutside india - - - - - -
i) Fnwestrnent in India 27 80200 - - - R
Total {B) Grosss 2780800 - - - 27.808.00
Less: Allowance for Impaiment 27.808.00 - - - - 27 B08.00
Total {T) {lj Met - - -

The carrying value and fair value of Investments by categories as .of 1st April 2008 are as follows

{Amount in 3 000

At Fair Value

: Designated at

Particulars Am;f;lt“d through | through r'aigr'.-alu-e Susb-total Total
[l profit orloss | throwgh profit
or loss

Equity Instruments 27.808.00 - - - - 27 B02.00
Cthers - - - - -
Total {A) Grosss 2780800 - - - 27 80800
1) frrestment outside g - - - - - -
{il) Envestrent in India 27.808.00 - - - 2780200
Total (B) Grosss 27.808.00 - - - 27 BO8 00
Less: Allowance for lmpaimment 27.808:00 - - - - 27.808.00
Total {T) (1) Met - - - - -
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED
Regd. Address: 5 GLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PARK 194 & 188, SECTOR-125, NOIDA
CIMNLITH18LP1985PLED26552
Motes to financial statements as at 31 March 2020

MWote 5 Property. Plant and Equipment {Amount in T 000)
Particulars Cffice Computers Furniture & Total
equipments Fixtures

Cost

At 1st April 2018 72.34 67 .40 29.70 169.44
Additions - - 6.65 665
Disposal - - - -
At 31st March 2019 T2.34 G740 36.35 176.09
Additions 145140 G800 - 245110
Disposal - - - -
At st March 2020 217.44 165.44 36.35 419.19

Depreciation

AL 1st April 2018 G0.86 29.88 4.43 a5.17
Crepraciation 8.50 2245 3.08 2404
Depraciation on Disposals - - - -
At 31st March 2019 69.36 52532 7.52 12921
Clepraciation 3a.09 3853 365 8028
Crepreciation on Disposals - - - -
AL 31st March 2020 107.46 O 86 11.147 20949
Met Block

At 1st April 2018 11.48 37.52 2537 T4.27
At st March 2019 2098 15.08 ZB.83 46.488
At 31st March 2020 10998 T4.55 2517 20870
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Mote T: Bomrowings:

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED
Regd. Address: § GLOBAL KHNOWLEDGE PARK 194 & 738, SECTOR-125, NOIDA
CINLTT118UP1385PL CO2E582

Motes to Financlal Statements for the period ended March 31, 2020

The carrying value and fair value of Borrowings by categories as of 34st March 2020 are as follows.
{Amount in 000}

Af Fair Value
3 Designated at
Particulars ﬁlﬂ;:::&d thraugh threugh fair valive Sab-total Total
izl profitorboss | through profi
o loss
a) Term Loans

i) from Blanks - - - - - -

U Tom Other parfies ¥ R - - - - Ry L
Total (A} Grosss 3TI B - 317 352
[1) Borrowiings i india A77.318.2 - - N
i) Bowowings cutside India - - - -
Total (B) Grosss 3070 N

# FRefer Note Mo 24

The carrying value and fair value of Borrowings by categories as of 315t March 2013 are as follows.
{Amount in ¥ '000}

At Fair Value
> Designated at
Particulars Am;‘l;;sed thrcugh through faiE wakue Sadb-total Total
o profit or loss | through profit
or lass
a) Term Loans

i) frome Banks - - - -

1) from Oifer parties 51837285 - - - - 5,16,372.65
Total [A) Grosss 3,16, 372 &3 - 31637265
11) Borrowings & india o, 10,20 5 - - )
(@) Bomrowings culside India - - - -
Total (B} Grosss 31637265 - SAEITLLS

The carrying value and fair value of Borrowings by catepories as of 4st April 2018 are as follows.
{Amoent in 000}

Al Fair Value
) Designated at
Particulars 'ﬂﬁ:ﬂ threugh through faig vaue Sub-total Taotal
i L profit orboss| through profit
of loss
) Term Loans

i) from Bankes - - - -

i} from Ofher parties 4.45412.00 - - 42541200
Total [A) Grosss 495412 00 455 412 00
{1) HorrowaAngs. m india R S - - ERGE S
{a) Bomrowings cutside India - - - - - -
Total (B) Grosss 4.95412.00 - 495412 .00
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

AV MERCANTILE LIMITED
Rege. fadreas: & SLOBAL KMOWLEDGE PARK 1945 190, SECTOR-1IS, KOIDA
CIRA T BUP PIBSPLTIZE AT
Fcts bo Fndancial statements fof the el mded March 37, 2328

1- FUMMARY OF EFNIFICANT ACCOURTING POLICIES

I

i

ek

v

Wik

wlip

Wi}

xl}

Zacle of Avgoundlng

The financhai sobaments are prepared unier. B bishoricsd oot convention o e concept of & golng concemy, in
= oA e wWith the Gaperaly Acoereed Accounting Principies snd msandatons Accouming - 2bnd ards. wperified oeder
Facton 133 of e Companies Ack 2073 read with Fodie 7 of B Companies. (Accounts) Fuies, 2094 and as per e
Pravisions and preseniaionad requirements of the-Companiss ACk 20130

Changsc in Acoounding poloisc

The accounting policles adopied are consiziens with hose of previous finencil year. The management ascumes that
thene hac been no change in Focounbing Dojices a5 Tomparsd b That of Drevious year WiCh would have any’
signtficant efMect on these fnancias, 3

Hpoognithen of Inooma
mcome (5 eongnised and acoounbed for on Arcris basks uniess offersise shbed

Vee of ectimabes

The pi=paafon of Tnahckal sebemends;” i comformity 'widh pensmaly Scoepied -abcounlog principi=s., reguines
mianagement o make ectmates and assumpions et affect the reported amountc of assets and Gabdies and e
disciocure of contingent scceis and. labilEes on the dafe ol the financial staiements and the mesuks of ppemtions
durng the reporting pear. Acbual resuls could '&HiTer from . Bhose estimates. Ay sision b accounmbing =sfmates 5
recognised prospechvaly i cument and fiture patnds.

invesimants

Long-tarmn inwestments ane vaiued al cost being the plntnese noce pkis-drect onsts. Provision 1 made for perranent
diminution, # any, In e value of thelnvestmerks.

Taxse on inpome

omenl-aor s dettrmieed and provided foe o B Ao unt of Tneabie - income o e appEcabr rabes for e relevant
franciy vear: Deferrad Tax Assels and Cabftes ([DTAL DL are recognised, sabdeot to corsaeration of prutdence,
o Fmiyg diTerences, Deing et diferenoe e basen ab b moom e G acoounting intoese Bhat originsle one percd
and Iocapable of meyercal in one or rrone subsequent pariccs. The DTA & recopriced oniy fo e madent Sl there i
redsonable Carmanty of SUPSClant Adure profils agains which such DA cEn e reaised,

Contingent Liskliity
The comtingent fabiities, i any, an Mociosed i bhe Noles ko Arcounts. Frovision 5 made i e scosunks, Fit
Ereporses probanis nabihens Wil be oo of mesoloes for saming Hhe-ob Agation.

Ewents oouunring afier the balanon cheet date

Adfuzimients 1o assets and Fabldes are made for events Scowming ater e balance. theet dale o orovice addkons
imformation maberialy afecting S determication of the amounts of asselz or Uabiites rdabng bo condMons existing at
che bamce cheetdate.

Earningc Per Thars
Sask samings per-shane ane Cafcubed Dy alviding the net prodt oricss for the earn peniod siributsbie 0 squity

shareholdsTs by S weipfed bl of =quEy.sh oit=tanding during the yean perod.
Targlbie Accate & Dapesciaiion
Tangih ke asseis are d'ori the basis of coslimodel. Acoonding fo-cost mocel, fanpitle assEls shoud be camed

at Bo cost less ang accomulsied depreciabion and any npayment iosses. Cost le-lhe amiount of oxchoor cash
equvalents paid or She far vaue of the olher consideration given i acquire an asset at e time of Re aoguesion o
cors s bing o, wher= appicabls, S amount abributed o Tat accet.

Tievpne odation
D reclation bm properny,. piant & equipment was provided o the basis of useful Sves preccibed underibed wrder
SChedue 10 the Tormmankes ACt, 2013

Bepreciytion on sddbon 1o ¥55els |5 Cacuiated pro-ratas from e dabe of such’ aasdition 5o the £nd of the pear. The
SOy ALSUMEs resious vl fo b MIang ssseln costng R G000 -0 s ars Tully depreciabed i the yearaf
punchase
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

ANOH MERCANTILE LIMITED
Mimge, Rddeeas: 5 GLOBAL HADWLEDGE FANH 198 & 198, SECTOR-A26, ROIDS
CHEL T P REPLO RIS
Rects o fanclal sirlemenks fod th yeir anded Mangt 31, 2020

4- BUMMARY OF BFOMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

k) Fesarys Fumd

£

Company ks required Yo oreabe 3 ressree dund and trabsfer Shienein 8 sum mol eas H'hnh':ﬂl:.l-ﬁtr,l:en!n'i‘h: net prafit
wyary vear as decissed in e peof® and.loess scooont and befors any dividerd i declared 2 per section dS1C of the
Recene Bank of inda A, 1934,

Fatiramand BEanaftc
Fetirmment baneht coctc and isrmination benafic

Fawments bo defined contrbofion mhirement benefft pans are recogriced as-an expense when Smployees have
rendersd servioe entEing them o the coplibubions.

For defined rebremen) BErat plans, the costoof providing benefis o defermiiad using S projected und cradt
rrethod, with actusnal valuabons belng camied out ab'the end of =ach annua repoiting perod. Re-meassrement,
comprising actuaral-galns and losces,; e adact of ihe -:range: ko e asne.‘-l:e!!rq:. 0 appiicabie | and the mehirn on
plan ansets | exciding nbeneat), b refected immedabely'in e Satement of Ananciy posion with & change or credit
recopnied In oiher comprehensive income i e perion In which thisy ooour, Se-measarement recopnised in other
comprenensie incore |5 refecind Irrnediately 0 retained eamings and wil mot be reclassFed o proftor logs, Past
service cosh is recognised inpnodt or oss- in the perod of & plan amendmend. Med inberest o caliulated by appiying the
disoount rabe af S beginning of the period bo theonet defined benelit Dsbify o aoset Defined bane't cotts are
cabegorised as ko

- maryice cost (Inckoding cumsnl senics-cost, past senvice costoas wel as galns and iosses on curtaiments and
saffementsy

et nterest sppEnse of INConees and

~[E-mEasunament

The Company presents- e-frsl o comiponems of defined benelk cosis in orodt of oss in e [ie=. Bem ‘Emploges
beneThs expenses’. Curiaiment gains and lossen are-aocourted for as pass serdoe cosis.

The retirement benad obiaion recogrised n-ihs sivisment of financial postion repmecards the achus defck of
surphes I the: Company’s defred benett plans. Any surpius resuling from: thic Cafoulation. ks imked toihe present
walue of any BConomic benedts avakabie T the fomn of sefumds from tha plans of neduclions i o conlribobons o
the plars.

Aclatriky Tor & Errireion I?Eﬂ-lﬁtﬂ MECOgNEsE 3 T SarFer o Winan e BNty can no fonger withdramw e ofer of the
tmmaination benett andwhen the entty recognises any reabsd resbrucharing costs,

Ehort-teem ard other long-term smployes benefis

A Habdty & recognised .‘t\nj:rrt!'lr:l ACCruing bo amployees in nespec ol wages ang salares, annual eove inthe period
Ehe relabed cervice |5 renaered at fhe unotscountesd amount of the beretis prpecied 0 b pald n exchange for thai
service.

Liabiities. rerognised- iR nespact af shor-harn smpioyes Hensis A mescined ot the indscountad-amaoust of e
BEnEs aapecied inne pald Freschange or e reised senice.

Llatdities recognized n nespect of ofer ong-temn empiopes penefls are mieasured at the present vaiee of the
esdmatea Tulure cash outfows eapecisd to be made oy the Compary nrecpect of seric e praviged by empioye &5 up
0 the eporting dabe
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED
Fsgd. Sddrecs: 3 GLCEAL KNOWLEDGE PARK 184 & 188, 3ECTOR-125,HOIDA
CAN:L 711 8UP1BAEPLCI28582
Motbes o Anancial cabsments tor the ynar anded Maroh ¥4, 2030

ADDITIONAL NOTES TO ACCOUNTE

The Tnanecizs for cument year endad on March 31, 2020 have been preparad a5 per the provisions and
schedides prescribed undes the Companies Act, 2013

The company Delng ES1ed on siock Sxchange Mersiie, Nas compied Wi st e notfes apalicabl
Agvpunting Standands.

Daferred Taxes

Az per the provisions of Inglan Accounting Standard AS - 12 Tincome tawes”, he company 3 on the gate ar
balance shesf, at the hcome. tax rates appicadie on the sald dafe has Defemed Tax &sseis [DTA) on
temporarny difersncas. The s3id OTA Nas Nt besn racognized In e books of accobnt, On Accoum: of vinual
uncenainty of future fong e profts and reuiva In the valles of iong berm investments respectivery

Previcus year gunes have Deen regroupenre-cassed wharevar considerad 1o maks comparabis with tha
Cument year figunas.

Al soneduees annexsd to-and Fom imtegra patt of he Balance Sheet 3a Profi & Loss ACcount including
Aanaune-A astequred in terms-of Paragraph 13 of Non-Systemically Importznt Mon-Baniing Financiai {Mon-
Deposft Accapting or Holdmg) Companies Pridentlsl Noms (Reserve Bank) Diréctions, 2013

Dlzciosurs required undaer sectlon 156{4) of the Companies Act, 3043
(Ao in F000)

Harre of Coanas :':‘: Do Dhats uﬂ:\:ld 3400 3005 OISR | Purpoas
iz "ﬁlﬁ:‘:’rﬂ'ﬂcww i, | s | Geassoess FENEEE] BRI PPN e
Saboat £y FstabSteion Centrs P4 Ind (-1 WEETE- Y e - £ BTG | Foe Chsrand Pormoks
Plim Pac Fokdinga Privats s 00me | o | tasecursd zoarmon|  2.0080m00 | ForGisneml Faooss
Srmr Crares Pu 154 {000% | Jiee2i | lowacurad . 6 00 00 | For Chinmend Purnoss
Wkl e T L2 oo | ooy | tmeasores ] 1 1360 00 | For Cianami Pormase
Mudalar & Sosm Ploisls Put, Lid 1000% | 1ares-3s | iemacoed . 5700 00 | For Cianamd Purnoss
g Cageaerires Do Lid van | S | tmpasoees 120000 1200000 | Fre Ciaran Parsosn
e 100e% | 3T-See-2 | Uesscered . 24 10020 | For Cianmenl Parnoss
3 O L oo | setprn | tmpasoees 00000 e T
Tpice Dre= Soicioma Ui 10 0 OE-lry-20 | Urmecarad 1, Gid DD . Fer Ciarass] Parpcss
VA Limdnd oo | 13-k | tmpasaees meon - | e cienar Purnsan
Ve Fonksns Sharmia 10008 |- 20 a7 | lemacernd Tizh 7 5% | For el Parsoss
e P Bt oo | 34 kdns | tmessoees 230 e T
Farssah Foree 0 On D0-Tnre3T | Liracores 3T - For Chararm Sorooss
faaml Slnge Fung (O00% | P | Lnsacoss FE - |FerasnaniPazaes
Wiy Sy S P00 | S-howez0 |- Lnwacoss fot = | Foranami Paooes
Dgtallz of Borrowings

fAmoare in #9001
Fatrre o Losarana ;T:: Doe gy | TR | AL | Pursoas
e e S amps | 3nmeeis | Urmscoms | ssemstaa|  3s0srn | FarGenens Purcas
Coranl Cickal Covporaie tesiding Pt Lt =N 1Rdared | Ursacores 1 [EXRLER T [ | For Carersl Purpces
Chmeal Vsl Srfrassristony T Lad amm | PdSapnn | Unseriees FASNTO0 1,200 00| Fer Chararal Pirpeas
fimscar Oy Rmaicarcssd Prvanne LimSec S0000N U= | Lrsscores - a7 40 00 | For Senersl Pumces

114




25

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Regd. Address: 5 GLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PARK 19A & 13B, SECTOR-123, NOIDA
CIN:LiTH1UR1985PLCO26582

Hotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

ADDITIOMAL NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
Employes benefits

Défined Benefit Plans -G D o

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit
o lipss-and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respeactive plans:

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit cbligation are as follows:

{Armcunt in F 000} (Amount in F "004)

Gratuity Leave
Defined benefit obligation at 01 April 2018 241.87 37313
Curent service cost 13062 180as
interest expense - -
Benefits paid - (12.50)
Actanal {gain} Ioss on abligations [t0.42) {58.33)
Defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2019 36208 48328
Current service cost 100.40 120.33
interest expense 2737 654
Benefiis paid (208,209 (38774
Acituarnal (gain) loss on obligations Ti.72 10E.21
Defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2020 35937 418.23
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Gratuity Leawve
Fair value of plan assets at 01 Apnl 2018 - -
Defined bensht obligation at 01 Apnl 2018 - -
Fairvalee of plan assets at 31 March 2048 - -
Defined benafit obligation at 31 March 2018 36208 483 28
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet at 31 March 2013 {362 08) (483 29)
Fair value of plan assets at 31 March 2020 - -
Defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2020 {208.20) (387.74)
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet at 31 March 2020 20820 39774
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Regd. Address: & GLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PARK 134 & 136, SECTOR-123, NOIDA
CIN:L1T113UP1983P LCO26582
Motes fo financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

ADDITIONAL NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Employes benefits

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:

{Amount in F "000) (Amount in ¥ "000)

Gratuity Leave
Cument senvice cost 130,83 Ta0.09
Met interest expense - -
Aciuanal gand {loss) on obligations (1042} [BB.33)
Arnount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss for year 120,21 122,66
ended 31 March 2015
Cument senvice cost 100,40 12823
Metinterest axpense 2737 34554
Actuarizl gaind {loss) on obligsticns T2 1856.51
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss for year I05.49 33767
ended 21 March 2020 '

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and leave encashment cbligations for the

Company's plans are shown below:

Fist March 2020

3tst March 2015

Discount rate {in %) B.53% 7.56%
Salary Escalation (in %) 5.50% 5.50%
1314 10465

Eupected average remaining working lives of employeas {in yezrs)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2020 is as shoewn below:

Aszzumptions Discount rate Salary Increase

Sensitivity Level +0:5% | -D.5% + [.5% | -B.5%
Impact on defined benefit obligation {Amount in ¥ "000) {Amount in F000)

Gratuity {270} 287 2848 [2.74)
Leave 14.62) 5.08 511 (488,

A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2013 is as shown below:

Assumptions Di=count rate Salary Increase

Sensitivity Level +05% | -05% +0.5% | -0.5%
Impact on defined benefit obligation {Amount in F'000) {Amount in T "000)

Gratuiny [5.54} &.01 §.10 (578
Leave (789} 218 831 [7.87Y
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED
Regd: Addesar S GLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PARM. 194 & 158, SECTOR-125; MCEDs,
LT THEUF 1 SEEFLCOSESER
Hotes to Sinanolal ctaferments for the year snded Maroh 21, 2020

28 -Falr Vabusc

Finansal Inctrurmsnic by category
The carrying valus and fair vades of fAnanclal Incirements by categoriss ac of Maroh 31, 2020 wam ac follows:
Carmcunt In F D00

Fartioulam: Armorticed ooct Falr walue through — Falr valus Total sarrying
prodfit or oot Brough OCI wvalus

Flranolal Accetc

Casn-and cash eopivaients 10152 104.53

Loins, 4R EE1A4D L8 RE1 AT

Irvesnerts = 2

Cribher Flnanchal Acoels 82,2307 223071

Total Fimanolal Aot 5,07, 153 85 = - E,52 1BS.B6

Finansal Liabiligas

Borowdngs 3,77,315:29 27731529

O firanc sl labiizes 3,580,230 £9,580.30

Total Fir lal Lrabiittiec 4 35 838 B2 - - 4,28, BRE.E2

Tha 0arrying valus amd falr wios of financdal Incinsmsnts by osatsgoniss 3¢ of Maroh 39, 2078 wars o Tollows:
Carmcunt n F D00

Partioulanc Armarticad ooct Falr valus through — Fair valus Total camying
proftt o koo Brroangh D vl
Finanodsl Acats
Cash and cash eguivaients & B 4£,765.54
Loans. 59710208 £ 5710308
Irreesiments F i
Criheer Financlal Acsets im0
i FOT e - - E,01 BEa.0T
Finanodal Liabilisas
Bosrowings = 16, 370.65 <16, 3T2BE
Crier firancial ilabiftes 47, TBE.18 4778848
“Total Finarsolal LEsmirges [0 [ =2 = - TESTE0EY
The oarTying wabus and falr valus of Anancial Inciremsnts by catmgoniss 3¢ of ApTH 01, S015 wees ot follows:
tamount in F 000
Partioulars Arperticed ooct Fair walus teough  Falr valus Tobal carmying
proftt or locs thrceangh ST wahse
Finanolal Acceic
Cash and cash aoutvaiamts 14.558.m 14, 855.0
Loans E 8003550 S,30 033,50
Investments = =
Oiher Finardal Acoets E347453
“Tozal Finanolal Accebe FOL =T EE - - [0 R 1
Finanodal Liabilizsc
Boroedngs 4,95 412,00 43541200
Criher franca Habiites 4250755 22,507.55
TToEA Finanoial Laiigss [ SE-F - - [%20:35:7 13

25.2 Fair waivs Tsrarsimy

Tha foHowing tabls providess bhs fair valus meacunsmsnt hisrarchy of ths Company's acsate and abiEthes.

Falr walips hisrarsiny

Lewer o - oted prices (unadusted) Im achve markets foridenfcal arsets of Babiithes,

Liawel 2 — inpuls- pthes than qucted orices incuded within Lewe] | thal ans obsenabie for e ascet or labdfy, sther diracty (Le: as
PRo=S)-or Indnecty (L= tarived from prio=sk

Lewei 3= Inpuis for Tie assets or Hablifdes et are nod barsed on ooservable mrewkst dats (unotreenraiie puts L

ThHe CONPAny Nas assectad that e fair waiie of rade necatiabies, cash and C3sh 2gUvalanss, omher Dank balanoes,, othar Dumens
Tinancal azgeis, tads payanhe, ard offer osment Habdites sooradmmats o their canmydng amount fargety due e The short bamn
matiaites of theos nshimrenis.
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED
Regd. AsdrEss: & GLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PASK 194 2 198, SECTOR-125, NOIDA
CINELAT1IEF 1285 FLICEIGEES
Nobee to finanadal ciafsmants for e year snosd Marah 31, 2020

Failr Wahess

This fodborwineg Eabds pracamts fabr walus hararoby of accate and lablifiss rmeacursd 31 falr valus on & resering backe ac of

March 21, 2020
CAmowand In F 090

Partoular 21 Mareh 2020 Fait valus meacurament 27 ond of the reporting
periodirear welng
Lewad 1 Lewwsl 2 Lewad 3
ALLAE
Irmeecinents ino equity Insinanents E -
Tokal - - - -

The following table precants Talr valus hisrarohy of aceate and llabliitiec: meacured ot fair valus on 2 recurring bacsls ac of
Marah 31, 2015:

farmeouns Im F 0000
31 Mareh 248 Fair valus maacuramest af ond of the reporting
Fartioularc perinciivear using
Cave 1 - ) CEvel 3
TRt
Irnvesimnents n InSinrnerts 3 =
Toktal - - - -

The Podlowing fable precants Talr wvalus hisrarchy of accatc and NablRSec meacured ot Fair valiss ona ressring baclc ac of
Aprdl 0. 2048

{Arnount in F006]
&1 Maroh 2078 Fair value maacuremeant a% snd of the reporting
Partioulare Gl
Lenvsd 1 Lenal 2 Levat 3
TALZ L
irvesiments In squity insinemems z =
Total - - - -

Finanoia rick management oblsctives and policiec

Frnanolal rek managemant

Finanolal rick factorc

Market rick

Miarkst sk fs the risk that the Seirveise of ftuns Cash fows of & Irancat Insmoment will fuchoess decacess of Changes in markss
Drices. Market Fok compirines e e of rsk: Ineres rate fok, cumency ok and offer oeios dok, U an Smdty proe ok and
comnadty risk. Foancal reruments afeci=d by markstrick ircdude foans-and borrpedings, depasits, FYTOO Innsstments,

Interect Rate Rick

Imbmre st ryle Ak s thee sk tha the Pair value o fulurs cash Sows of 8 Tnancial insnement will Suciabe becauce of dhanges i
market leres mben The COMmpany’s eXpasIne 10 e ok of changess in marnket Intenesh rates. recates pimacy o e oen given,
Securty deposhs reoahvedioals and borrosings.

Intareci rfe conciivity caloulabed on borrowings.
Effaat o poilit
ImorsaeaiDecraac |befors fax
&) In basle podnts
"PArmcart in F 000
A -Pelar-20
{Amount in 5 000} 2.50 FETI9FE)
1050} 2335:F3
21 -Mar-1%
[Arnountin 3 000y T50 Eaad 39
[ =444 .32
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Regd. Address: 2 GLDBAL KNOWLEDSE PARM. 154 & 158, ZECTOR-12E, MO
CMLAT 1S 19E5FLCOREEED
Mk to Brssrodal caisments for the vsar smded Moaroh 31, 2020

28 FalrValues
Equity Prios Rick
The Cormpany’s fIsted and unisoed =muty securfies ar miscentiols oo markes; price sk -ansng from unosrminbes ahoart ful e
vakies, of the nvechment saouites. The Company dor't angage in acthes rasdng of eqguity incruments. Beports on e sty
poetiodln 3 subimithed fo S Compamy’s SENLET MaragemasT on 3 reguiar basis. The Compary s Soard of Dineciors meviess 3nd
aporoes al sqully Tesmmens dedoions.
AL e reporting dale e = posunes 50 fsbed andl il sted agquity securifes 2 fafn vajos ko nod maber s (e choding inveskresnt tn
subsiEares].

Credit Rick:

Credit risk i the risk that counbsrperty will nol mest o obdigations under & rancal Irstrument or cusSomes condrad), feading oo
financal ozs The Compamy Is sxposed bo credit rok from: s op=rating acthiies (oimardy trade reostvagiss] and frer Rs finsndng
activites, Inchaling depasts il banis =nd inandasl irsthtions snd other financal Instrumenis.,

The Corpany Fa s used & pracscal expedient and anaiyoed the recoverabee amount of the receivabies on an ndbvidus bass by

computing the expecied loas abowance for finandal assets based on NStorica cregit loss exparience and agustmets S forand

rooigkng Infioamation's.

Liqubdity rick

The Company’'s oblechive Iz 0 raintain. a how debd =sxposure. The oonpany's pnoeEe wounces of fguidity ane carsh and cach
equhvems and the cash fow hat i gererated from operations. The Cormpany manages. Bouidity risk oy malniaining adeguats
cazh resenes, by cantriousy monbod g Sonscxst and achxy cash fiows, and by matching the matrity profiles of fhandal asoets
and b,

The {able balow provides detals raganding the contrastual maturtbes of cgrmeent faancial labllities &c of March 31, 2020

[Amount i F “000)
[ Lec Ehan 1 year 1-5 years Totad
‘Bomowings g ] = 3T IE.ID
Criiey firancial lablites 4555030 3 49.550.30
Total 4,26,B06.68 - 4,28 85608

Thee izbie below provides detafic ragarding the sontracbesd maheites of cignificant inapsial Babfies ac of Maroh 31, 2098:

[Amount En F 00
Parttoulare Laspr Bham ] year -5 years Tobxt
BoeTowAngs SETIT2ES 45 D000 5.16;3T3 65
Other froncia lablites a7 TERAS 47,738,18
Total 5,16 680 B #2_E00.00 .84, 180,53

Thes Snhls balow prowides datais regarding B oondrastual maturtiss. of cignsioent financial fablifiss ac of March 21, 2015:

famrourt b F 000
Partioulars L than 1 year 1-B ymarc Toksd
Bosmowings 4,70, 41200 ZE0CD.00 422 21200
e firamca HabliTes 43 50T EE 42, 507,85
Total [REFE-REF- ZE 2000 5,37, 815,68

28 Capital management

Fiar ;e purpose of e comsany o capdtal management, Capial indudes fzousd squity capial, ard el oiher eguilly resernes
ributans e anuiy holoers of e parent. Tne prinnany objecthes of he comoany's Capds) manapement = o readmise the:

The Company mansges s capial stnackine and makes acfusbnents In light of changes in econamic concibors and Ene
requirsmenis of B finandal coveranis. The comoany montions capial wsing a gearing rate, which 1o net debt dvided oy fotal
capital olus net debd, The comnoany ndudes wiihin Dommadngs, Trade pavables, other fnancial lablitdes, other curment Habi s less

F1 Maroh 2020 T April 2018
Bomoaings T77.51528 FEEL1za0
Oiher Anandal |iabiites 4553030 47 B07.5E
Less: Cagh and cash squbaients §E152 1485801
Hat Disbt 428,747 5,E8,389.89 £.33.081 55
Equity T4TTEE0 7477350 7477350
C-apitat and rist debé 6,01, 58787 B,84,187.78 £.87.BY6.85
Gearng rato IEER BE.21% BT AT%
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED
Regd. Address: 5 GLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PARK 134 & 138, SECTOR-125, NOIDWA
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Nies to financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 3020

249 Firat Tine Adoption of ind A%
These financial statements, 1or the year ented 31 March 2000, are the irst, the company' has prepared in Scordance with
Ind A% For perinds up to-and Indudng the year ended 31 Manch 2019, the company prepared it inancial statements in
ateordance wWih accounting stancards notfiey under sackon 133 of fhe Companies Act 3013, read together with paragraph
7 0t e Corpanias [Arcodnts) Bules, 2014 dndian GASP).

Acoordinggy, the company has prepared TNancis statements wWhich omply with Ind A5 applicable for peroos ending on 31
Wiarch 2020, together with fhe comparative period data s at and for the year ended 31 March 2013 I preparing these
Tnancial statements, the COMPans Opaning balance seel 5 reparss as at 1 Apr 2014, the company's date of Tansiuon
to ind AS

The Compary nas prepand he cpening standsione baiance shesl 35 perind AS 35 of 200} 1. 2013 {the ransiton oxbe) by
recogniing all 3ssels and Tablifios Whoss Fecoanition 5 requined by Ind A5, not recnEnsing Mems of assats of Rabiities
which are not permitisd By Ind AS, by reciassiying larms rom previcus GAAP bo ind AZ 38 required Under Ind A, and
apoiying Ind AT In measUrSment of recognisec assels and IIDNEs. However, e prifcipie s sublsct to the certan
excepbion and cortain oplionad exerptions avaiad by the Company 35 detalled befow.

Exemptions applisd:-

Cesmed coat- Fair vailus of propsrty, plant and sgquipment and intangible Asssts .

The Company Nas esscted ho contnue Weth the caTying waite of il of %5 plant and equipment recognieed 35 of Apre 1, 2018
(ransiton date) Mmessured 35 Dor e previous GAAR and Use M3t CAMANG vakie 35 15 desmed oost 35 of e ransiton
date.

Invesiment In subsidiaries and Assoclates:

The Cornpany has sectad to continue With the camying waiue of Investment In Bquity nesiruments, 35 recogniseds in its.Indan
GAAP inancials, 35 osermed cost 3 the dane of transon.

Eztimates

The estimnates at 1 April 2016 3nd at 31 harch 2012 are conslstent with those mace Tor fe-same dates. it accordance wihn
imdlan SAAR (afer adjustments To refect any differences In accounting policies) apart Tom the folowing Hems whare
appéication of Indian SAAR did et require ectimation

Cigsaification and measurement of financlai azaets
The company has diassfled e Inancal assets In accordance with Ind AS 1059 oo the: basls of facks and creumstances that
edst at he date of ransiton o imd AL

impadrrnent of financial asests: {Trade recelvables and other financlal asssks)

&t the date of ransiion to ind A5, the Company has delenmined that thene slgnificant increase 0 credd sk since the inital
recognaion of 3 inancial instrument would regquine sndee cost or effor,; B Company has recogrised 3 loss alowante 2 an
amount equal to IIfetimie expected ored® losses at each reparting date untll that Tnancal Instument is derscognised (miless
mat inancia Instrurment i5 iow credi Ak at 3 reportng cate).
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Ragd. Address; B GLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PARK 154 & 198, SECTOR-125, NOIDA

29 First Time Adoption of nd 4% [Cont)

First Time Adoption of Ind A5 Reconcillatons

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

A0 MERCANTILE LIMITED

CINLI7TIEUP1 BasP LOD2ESE2
Hotes fo Minanclal statemsents for the year apdad March 31, 2020

A Reconicillaiions of Balance Sheel :
Lrrentint Im F 0D
ance & a5 ¥
Mote Effect of Prah Effact of
& | Previous GAAP| fransiElon Ind A5 EAAD transition Ind A5
to Ind A5 o ind AS
BSSETS
Finamclal Azastis
(31 Cash and cash equivaents 1 4. TEE54 = 4, 75634 1485881 - 14,358.01
5 Loans 2 5,007, 10208 = SATIRes 5,90,033.50 = SO O3a05D
{2} investmanis 3 - - - -
() Orthes Finangalh Assals 4 TT 36305 - TTa630E S3ATIES - S3ATIES
5ub - Tobal Financial ssests B 132508 - B 73,232 08 B, 583595 & 58,369, 33
Hon-Financla Azse%
(&) Praperty, plant and squipeient S 4585 . 4686 74.37 - 7427
{9 Curent tax assats [net) B 1380373 . 1380373 7,807 .9 - 7,907.95
Sub Total Non-Financial aeesis 13.850.67 - 13850061 8213 75825
TOTAL ABSETS [ EEiE - RIS LB EECIEToE |
LIABILITIES AND EGQLNTY
Flnancal Llablirtes
i) Bomowings T 506 3TAES - 5, 1637285 & 95 41200 - 4 9541200
0y Oher Finandal Liabiites ] 47, 75418 - a7, TRE1E 42 507 55 - 42.907.55
Bub - Tobal Financial Liabities 5,54, 160.85 - SE4IR0ES | 5ITHISE 5.37,918.55
Mon - Financial Liabliiies
() Provisaons a F54307 - 354507 2 E230B2 - 22336
SUb - Todal Non-Financkal LiabliRles 304507 - 3.545.07 2AETE2 2,223.82
EGLATY
(3] Equty Share Capital 10 T4 TTIEN : 7477390 7477350 = T4 7Rl
b} Oither Sutty 11 E[E04.00 3 50,504 90 £1.434.40 = 51,434.45
Suh - Todal Equity 1.25.376.60 5 1547600 | 1260005 12620039
TOTAL - LIASILITIES AND EQUITY 6,05, 08263 4 930262 .56, 351.56 BB6. 25156
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Regd. Address: 5 GLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PARK 124 & 198, SECTOR-125, NOIDA

CH:LATH 18P 1385P L 026582

Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

3 Firat Time Adopfion of ind 45 [Cond)

First Time Adopton of ind A% Reconciiztions

£ Reconcllations of Tofal Comprehensive iIncome for the year endsd March 31, 2013

{Amiount in F000)

Year ended March 3, 213
MNaotes Previous Eﬁl.?'?'t of
GAAP transition to Ind AS
ind AS
Revenus from Opsrations
Irtarest Incoeme 12 &0, 7TO.E2 - 807702
Tofal Rewanua from Operations B0, TTEE2 - B0, FTE2
Cthar Income 13 188 B 285
Total incoms G0, 77488 £0,774.45
Expensas
Fianoe coels 14 4EE5200 - 48 85250
Ernpioyess Denalis Supenses 15 1E8sEaT - 10,882 27
Depraciation, amoriEatn a0 mpamen 5 L I B4
Cihar axpensas 15 3E73ET - AETIET
Total 3, 422.90] £1.822 98
Proft ) [Loes) befors tas [E48.50) [&4E.50]
Tax EXpansss ©
[F) Caurreni Tax {1300 [181.09%
i Deferred Tax - -
Profit! [Loas) for the pelod [F22.53) [B23.55)
Other Compranenzive Income
Ibceis. that well not b neciaecified o ool of 108s
Incgnis T2 pedating to themns - that will pot be reciassified 1o prodt o
21
Subboial {a)
Heme that well be nesizssfed 10 pmdR of D55
Inzoene iax r=iating todttems that will be reciassifled to prof or joss
Subtatal (b
Cther Comprahensive Ncoms {3-b) - -
Todsi Comprehansis INcoms for the perod [13+14) {Eras [#29.55)
[Comprising Prof (Logs) and ofher Comprensnsive ncome for
the partod]



AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED
Fiagd. Addrecs: § GLOBAL KNOWLEDRE FARK 19l & 168, SECTOR- 125 HODA

CINLATT 2P 38EPLCO 2803

Modes bo finencll ciafeenenic forthe yoar snded March 31, 2020
ADDATIONAL NOTES TO ACTOUNTE

Detaits of Key Mansgenal Pemarnine] 5

L BTN

Mams: Mr. Jagdutt Mumas Bharma (kEan ager]

Saiany | AlcEAnCES
Car Lease Sent pakd
e reimbarsereent

HName: Mr. Pranjuf Gupta (Company
Talary [ Allowances

Eacvetary w.e 1. 15.04.2018)

Harms: Mr. Gopal 3ingh Hegl (TR0 waf D1.06E 2018)

Talary [ Alwances
Car Leazss Rentpakd
Ot redmbursennent

Informaiion requirad by be ghven by way of nods

raganging Toralgn owranoy hoeomesloutpo

[a) Ralated Party Dicolowcers -
Hiolding Campany

Subsidlary Company

Faiiow Eubcldiary Company
Ancon iyt pompany

Kay Managsmesnt Parconnsl

b} Relaind Party Trancaotions

iz

A moant In ¥ SlG) {Amdiant & T 0T

2110 2n5s

1,5359.20 153980

230 0O 13000
430 20 47540 .

2,200,080 298808
2e18-20 b - By

a2

54100 28351

e 204818

+ 20420 S1E0

24000 1835

—_— 22780 - Lo
1,786.00 3T

M. Jagdist Kemar Sharsa [Manager

L. Pracjul GuptaiCompany Secrebny w1304 2018)

b2, Semma Sakean (Orechor weed 1906 2019)

M. Diddres haae Kamar Upadhyay (Dirschor e 2. Z5005 2013

Famalap ! Kashyap IDrecdor w20

29.07.2048)

i
Wi, Gurnyindar P Bingh (Oirector w et 29 07 2019}
ir; - Goged Singh Megl (CFOw.e.f 01.03.204%)

Alached os per annens=-

As per the updated circulsr DRER (PO} GO, Mo Q42N 3 0798201516 dated 1 1th Apal 3045, e prudential nomes
sncept para 1S sl mot apply ooths Sompany as e Company = pon-banking feanclsl company having asoel siee
of ez than RS.S0E  crores-and furthesr i doss nol accepbhold any pubic funds. Accorfmgly. Provicioning nomms - ars

ol 2pplicabie to e Corpamy.

M DT asched report of 2ven dane
For Gosl Garg & Co.

Chasisred Aocoantants

FRM: 0033578

{Achok Kumar Sgarvalh
Patner
B hig 24500

D - 15.07.2020

Faor and on bahall of the Bbard of Direatore

{Kamalapatl Kachyap)
CHreactor
D 02355002

(Franjul Supta)
Coonpany Jecretary
KL BIDL AR 2

[Burvinder Fal Zingh)
Direcio:
Dife DEH0TATT

[Bopal 2ingh Hegl)
CFD
PAMIAKLIFNAISEN
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Regd. Address: § GLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PARK 194 & 19B, SECTOR-125NOIDA
CIN:LA7118UP1985PLC026582
Related Party transactions for the yvear ended March 34, 2020

Annexure-1 (Amount in T "000)
Key management
Particutars Personne| Toal
2019-20 201815 2019-20 2011519
(A} Transactions
Salary & Allowances Paid
Jagdutt Kumar Shama 2,200.00 218500 2,200.00 2.195.00
Pranjul Gupta PR 393.01 S40.00 393.01
Gopal Singh Negi 1,739.00 131.44 1, 73500 13144
Director's Sitting Fees Paid
Famesh Chandra Lganwal 7.50 30.00 750 30.00
Satish Kimar Gupta 750 20.00 ¥ 2000
Seema Salwan 2000 - 20,06 -
Siddheshwar Kumar Upadhyay 15.60 - 15,00 -
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED

ANNEXURE 'A” FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

Particulars as per NBFC Directions as at 31.03.2020

(as required in terms of Paragraph 13 of Mon-Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (hon-
Depaosit Accepiing or Holding!  Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015,

Hs. {IN Lakhs)

Farticulars

Liabilities side :

(1)
(a)

(k)
(c)
(d)
(e)
{n

*

Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of

interest accrued thereon but not paid ;
Dehentures © Secured

- Unsecurad

{other than falling within the

meaning of public depasits®)

Deferred Credits
Term Loans
Inter-corporate loans and horowing (Unsecurad)
Commercial Paper
Other Logns (specify nature)

Flease ses Note 1 Delow

Arnount
Cutstanding

Amount
Chverdue

Assels side :

{2)

(a)
(b)

Break - up of Loans and Advances inciuding

bills  Trade receivables [ other than those included
ini4below]:

Secured

Lnsecured

Amount outstanding

4,458 51

Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire
and other assets counting towards
AFC Activities

MA.
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(4

(i

(i)
(iif)
(v}
v

o

tmr

(i

()
(i}
(i)
()

(i

(i)
(i}
(i)
v

P

(i

()
(i)
(iv)
vl

S

EBreak-up of Investment ;

Cument Investment ;
Cunied -
Shares:  (a) Equily

(k) Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of muiual funds
Govemment Securties

Oithers (please specify)

Unquoted :
Shares: (a) Equity

(i) Preference
Crebentures and Bonds
Units of muiiai funds
Govemment Securities

Others (please specify)

I I : 1 { Proiisi ¢ it
yalue of investments:

Cuoted ©
Shares:  (a) Equity

(k) Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of muiual funds
Govemment Securities

Cithers (please specify)

Unquoted -

Shares:  (3) Eqguity (net of provision)
() Freference

Debentures and Bonds

Units of muiuai funds

Govemment Securities

Others (please specify)
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ANNEXURE A" FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
Particulars-as per MBFC Directions as at 3103 2020

{as required in temms of Paragraph 13 of Mon-Systernically imporant Mon-Banking Financial {Non-Deposit
Apcepting or Holding ) Comgpanies. Prudential Monts (Resemve Bank Directions, 2015

Fs. {IM Lakhs)
Fartculars |
15) |Borrower group-wise classiication Of a55ets NNanced a5 iN jo) & o) anove:
Please see Mote 2 balow Amount net of provisions
T Secured Onsecured Total
7 |[Fested Farmies™
1a)|  Subsidianes
1Y) Comparees i the same goup
[ci| “her refated partes - -
2 |Cxher than relaied partes LT 420551

Total 4408 04 TIIE5T |

(8} |securities (both quoted and enguoted) :

Investor group-wise classification of all investments {current and long term) in shares and

Please see Mok J below
WMarket Value [Ereak ook Value
Category L Or f37 vmlue or {Mes of
[ Prowisions )

1 |FefEted Fades ™

3l subsaianes

B Comparees in the same group ™

Toi|  her related
2 |C#her than related paries

Total

A5 per-Accounting Standard of ICA] [Please seeblote 3)

The d=fination of "Companies inthe same growp” has been taken i termrs of paragraph 201 fii ) of bon-
" Systernicaly Impartant non-Banking Financia (Mon-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential

{7} Other information
Farticulars Aot
T [5ross Mon - Perorming Aesets HA
{a}| = Felated pates -
B} Other than reizted parties
{ii} |Met Non - Performing Assets WA
{a)| Felaed pates -
B}  Other than =izted parties
(it} |Assets acquired in satistachon of debt NA

Motes -

1 Asdefined in paragraph 2 (1) {xu) of the Mon - Banking Fnancal Sompanes Acceptance of Public

Ceposits (Reserve Bank| Directicns, 1968

-2

Prowisazning norms: shail be appicable s prescrbed mothe Non-Systermcally important Mon-Baniong

Financial (Mon-Deposat Accepding or Holding) Companies Prodential Noms (Resenie Bank) Directions,
2015, However as per the updated cirular DMNER (PL) CC. Mo De2T3 101197200 5-19 dated 118 Aprd
2015, the prudental morms excepd para 15 shal not apply fo the Company 'as the Company s non-banking
fnanciaf company having asset size of fees than Fis.500 crores and further it doss not accepthcid any
public funds. Accordngly Provisioning nomis are not appiicabie to the Comgany.
4 Al Accounting Standards and Gueidance Mobes issted by $0Al are applicshle including for valuation of
imresments and cther assets as ¥=0 assels acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market valus in

respect of quoted

imvestrnent and break up ) fair vahee WAV B respect of ungucisd investments should

be disclosed irmespective of whather fhey are ciassifiad as long team or curent in column {41 3bowe.
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GREEN INITIATIVE APPEAL TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Shareholders holding shares in demat form are requested to register their e-mdil r::\'\w}\fi
their Depository. Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to send their
consent to our Registrar and Transfer Agent, M/s MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited in the

following format.

Date:

Unit: Avon Mercantile Limited

M/s. MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
F-65, Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-l,
New Delhi - 110020

Phone No: 011-41406149

Fax No: 011-41709881

E-mail id: helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com

Website: www.mcsreqistrars.com

I/We holding shares of the Company

in physical form intend to receive all communications including notices, annual reports,

/\
N

through my/our e-mail id given hereunder:

Folio No E-mail id

Signature of the first holder
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AVON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CIN: L17118UP1985PLC026582

S, GLOBAL KNOWLEDGE PARK,
19A &19B, SECTOR-125,
NOIDA-201301
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